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McGladrey & Pullen

Cartified Futiic Accountarts

Independent Auditer's Report

To the Board of Directors
Liberty Diatysis, LLC and Subsidiaries
Mercer Island, #ashmglon

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidianes as of
December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in members’ equity andcash
flows for the yearthen ended. These financial statements are the responsibilty of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements hased on our aud.

We conducted our audi in accordance with audting standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require thal we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement  An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaiuating the overalt financial stalement

presentalion. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opirion, the consolidated financial stalements refemed to above present fairty, in all material respecls, the
financial position of Liberty Dialysts, LLC and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting prnciples generally accepted in
the United States of America.

/?’M//m%, £

Stamford, Gonnecticut
May 7, 2009

MGladrey & Ruflen, LLP is an ndepeadent member fim of RS Intzmational,
an affkiztion of separate and independent legal entties.
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Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2007
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Mote 2) ¥ 26093599
Patient accounts receivable, net of aflowance for uncollechible accounts of $5,433,052 (Note 2} 32,698,933
Medical and pharmacy supplies 2123972
Due fromaffiliates (Notes & and 12) 8,334,401
Other receivables and prepaid expenses 4,411,575
Total current assets 73,668,480
Property and equipment - net (Note 3) 41,649945
Amortizable infangibles - net (Note 4) 10,203,986
Due from affiliates - net (Notes 5 and 12) 2,526,095
Other long-term assels (MNote 7) 581,808
Goodwill {Notes 11 and 13) 97 276,370
Total assets 225905654

Liabilities and Members' Equity
Gurrent Liabilitres

Accounts payable and accrued expenses P 289903%

| Line of credit (Note 9) 4,044,762

| Current portion of long-term deb! (Note 8) 8,194,183

i Total current liabifities 41,229 340
|

| Long-term debt {Note 8) 97,151 811

Other long-term fiabilities (Note £) 6,264,232

Total liabilities 144,645 383

Gommiments and Contingencies (Note 10)

Minorily interest 7,118,930
Members' equity 74,141 371
| Total liabilities and members' equity § 225,906,684

Ses Notes to Comsolidated Financial State ments




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended De cember 31, 2007

Revenue
Net palient service revenue (Note 2)
Other revenue
Total revenue

Operaling Expenses
alaries, conlracted senices and employee benefils
Supplies and other operating expenses
Provision for Lncolieclible accounts
Depreciation and amorization (Notes 3 and Note 4)
Other taxes
Other operating losses
Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Cther Expense
Interest expense, net
Loss on equity investments

Income before minority interest in netincome of subsidiaries

Minorily interest in net incorme of subsidianies
Net Income

See Netes to Consolidated Financial Sistements

b

145324 171
1397 814

146,721,987

50,724,039
64,728 667
4051 113
7,230,029
2,101,140
34 334

128.929,32

17,792,660

10,335,618
347,383

6,609,459

(3,102,808)

¥

3,406,651




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members' Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Balance, December 31, 2006
Member contriby Ltions
Member distributions
Proceeds from sale of membership interest
MNet Incoma
Balance, December 31, 2007

See Moles to Consolidated Financial Statements.

§ 70714817
4507 803
(5,455,160

997,160
3,406,651

3 74,141,371




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2007

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile ret income fo netcash provided by operating aclivities:

Iinority interest in net income of subsidiares
Distnbulions 1o minonty interests
Equity irvestment losses
Depreciation and amoriizaton
Deferred financing costs amortization
Changes in assets and liabilifies
{Increase) decrease in.
Fatient accounts receivable
Medical and pharmacy supplies
Other recenvables and current assets
Other long-term assets
Increase in;
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Netcash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows frorn Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchese of intangible assels
Purchase of various companies, nef of cash and cash equivalents
Netcash used ininvesting activities

Cash Flows from Firancing Activities
Wembers' capital contributions
Members'capital distributions
Proceeds from sale of membership inferest
Praceeds from line of credit
Proceeds from long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Net cash provided by financing activities

Netdecrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivaients
Beginning
Ending
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Infor mation

Cash paid during the yearfor
Interest

See Notes lo Consolidated Financial Statements.

3,406,651

3,102,808
658,323
947,383

7,230,029
265,374

(5,203,339)
{407 254)
7,194,903)
516,149

7,957,814

11,376,035

(13,644.883)
548,750)
(14,162,794)

128.456,427)

4,507,803
(5,485, 160)
997,160
2,000,000
15,414,469
(5,850,122)

11,584,150

(5,493,242

31,586,841

26,093,599

$

7,238,467




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem ents

Nete 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

MNature of business: Liberty Dialysss, LLC (the "Company’), a Delaware Limited Liability Company, was organized in
september 2002 to {orm and make contributions of capital to one or more entities for the purpose of acquiring,
consiructing, owning, leasing, operating, maintaining and selling kidney dialysis centers. The term of the Company
commenced upon fiiing the Cerificate of Formalion with the stale of Delaware on Seplember 12, 2002 and shalt continue
perpetually unless terminated in accordance with the operating agreement At December 31, 2007, Likerdy Dialysis, LLC
owned and operated 89 kidney dialysis centers across the United States with its pariners through investmenls in limited
liability companies, which are subsidiaries of the Gompany.

Basis of preseniation These consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepledin the Unied States of America. The accompanying financial
slalements include the accounts of Liberly Dialysis, LLC and all of its consclidated subsidiaries  All significant
intercompany balances and fransactions have been efiminated. Non-consolidated equity invesi ments are recorded under
the equity or cost method of accounting as appropnate.

1 ' ] - Revenues associated with Medicare and Medicaid
programs are recognlzed based on a) the payment rafes thal are established by slatute or regulation for the portion of the
payment rates paid by the government and b) for the porlion not paid by the primary government payor, the estimated
amounds thal wil ultimately be colleclible from cther government programs paying secondary coverage (e.g., Medicaid
secondary coverage), the patient’s commercial health plan secondary coverage, or the palient. Revenues associated
with commercial heallh plans are estimated based on contractual terms forthe patients under healthcare plans with which
the Company has formal agreements, if any, commercial heaith plan coverage terms if known, estimated secondary
collections, historical collection experience, historical trends of refunds and payor payment adjuetments {retractions), and
regulatory compliance issues

Patient services revenue is recognized in the period services are provided Reverue consists primarily of payments from
Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis and ancillary senvices provided to pahients A usual and
customary fee schedule 15 maintained for dialysis treal ment and other patient serwices, however, actual collectible
revenue as recorded in the financial statements s normailly at a discount to the fee schedule.

Commercial revenue recognition involves substaniial estimating risks. With many iarger, commercial insurers the
Company has several different confracts and payment arrangements, and ihese coniracts often include only a subset of
the Gompany's cenfers. In addition, for services provided by non-contracted centers, final collection may require specific
negotiation of a payment amount, which may involve & discount from the Company's usual and custo mary rates.

Senvices covered by Medicare and Medicaid are less subject to eshimating risle. Both Medicare and Medicaid rafes use
prospective payment methods esfablished in advance with defintve terms  Medicare paymenis for bad debt claims are
subject to individual center profitability, as established by cost reporls, and require evidence of collection efforls As a
result, billing and collection of Medicare bad debt claims are often defayed significantly; and fina! payment is subject o
audit Medicaid payments, when Medicaid coverage is secoridary, may also be difficull to estimate. For many states,
Medicaid payment terms and methods differ from Medicare, and may prevent accurate estimation of indwvidual payment
amounts prior to bifling.

Revenue recognition uncerainties inherent in the Company's operalions are addressed in AICPA Statement of Position
(SOP) No. 001 Audliting Health Care Third-Parly Revenue and Related Receivables. As addressed in SCOP No. 00-1, net
revenue recogniton and allowances for uncollectible billings require the use of estimates of the amounts that will actually
be realized considering among other tems, refroactive adjustments that may be associated with requlalory reviews,
audits, billing reviews and other matiers.




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidate d Financial Statem entg

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Use of eslimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity wilh generzlty accepted accounting principies in
the United States requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported ainounis of revenues, expenses,
assels, liabilties and contingencies. Alhough actual results in subsequent periods will differ from these estimales, such
estimates are develaped based on the best information available to manage ment and management's best ju dgments at
the lime made. Al signifizant assumptions and estimates underlying the reporled amounts in {he financial statements and
accompanying notes are reqularly reviewed and updsted Changes in estimates are reflecied in the financiz| statements
based upon or-going actual experience trends, or subsequent settlements and realizations depending on the nature and
prediciability of the estimates and contingencies.

The most significart assumptions and eslimales underlying these financial statements and acco mpanying notes involve
revenus recognition and provisions for uncollectibte accounts, imparments and valuation adustments, and purchase
accounting valuations estimates. Specific eslimaling nisks and conlingencies are further addressed within these notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

cash equl * Forthe purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Gompany constders al highly hquid de bl
instruments with a maturily of three months or less to be cash equivalents

Income taxes The members elected fo be texed as a Limited Liability Gornpany under the provistons of the Inernal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, taxable income will be reported on the fax refurns of the individual members.

filedical and pharmacy supplies are stated af the lower of cost {first-in, first-out) or
markel and consisi principally of pharmaceuticals and dialysis relaled supplies.

Property and equipment Property and equipment is stated af cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The
Company provides for depreciation using the straight-ine method over the useful lves of the assets eslimated as follows:
equipmert, 7 years; office equipment and furniture, 3 to 7 years, and leasehold tmprovements are depreciated over the
lesser of the expected term of the refated lease or the estimated useful lives of the assets Wantenance and repairs are
charged lo expense as incurred. Upon sale or retire ment, the cost of the asset and the related accurulated depreciation
are removed fram the accounts, and the remaining gain or loss is included in the results of operations.

Amoitizable intangibles Amortizable intangible assets inciude non-competition and similar agreements, hospital acule
service contracts and deferred financing costs, which heve deferminable usefu! lives. Nonco mpelition and simdar
agreements are amortized over the terms of the agrezments, typicaily ten years, using the straight-line method. Hospital
acute service contracts are amortized straight-ine over the term of the contract period. Deferved financing casts are
amortized o inleres! expense aver the lerm of the relaled debt using the effective Inferest method

Equily investment The Company is accourting for ds nvestment ina 43.2% owned affilale (see Note 6) by the equity
method of accounting under which the Company's share of the net income or loss of the affiliate 5 recognized as mcome
inthe Company’s income statement and added fo the invesiment account, and distrbutions recewed from the affiiizte are
treated as a reduction of the investment account.

Goodwill Goodwill represents lhe difference between the purchase cost of acquired businesses and the fair value of the
identifiable fangible and intangible nel assets ecquired. Goodwil is nol amortized, bul i5 assessed for valuation
impairment as circumstances warrant and is performed at least annually  Amimpairment charge would be recorded to the
extent the book value of goodwill exceeds its fair value. The Company operales as one reporing unit for goodwall
tmpairment assessmens.




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidate d Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill [cortinued) In accordance with SFAS 142, goodwill  required to be evaluated for impairment on an annual
basis, or more frequently if impairment indicators arse, using fair-value-based est that compares the fair value of the
assel to s camying value. Fair values are defermined by discounting fulure cash flows of the reporting unit, using 2 rIsk-
adjusted discouni rate, as developed by management.

AL . Long-lived assets, including property and equipment and amortizable intangible assets
are reviewed for possible impairment whenever significant evenls or changes i circumstances indicele that impairment
may have cccurred, including changes in business strateqy and plans, changes in the quality or structure of relationships
with partners and deteriorating operating performance of indwidual dialysis cenlers An impairment is indicated when the
sum of the expected future undiscounted net cash flows identifiable to an assel or asset group 15 less than iis carmyng
value. Impairment losses are determined from aclual or estimated fair values, which are based on market values, nel
realizable values or projections of discounted net cash flows, as appropriate fmparment charges are included in
operating expenses.

inlerest The consolidated ncome is decreased by the proportionate amount of net income accruing to minority
nteresis. Winonty interests represent the equity mterests of thirdparty owners in consolidated entities that are nof wholly
owned As of December 31, 2007, third parties held minorty cwnership inferests in 42 consolidated entties

Recent acgounting pronouncements In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board TFASE’) ssued
Stalement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 {revised 2007), Business Combinations { SFAS No 141R). SFAS
No. 141(R), among other things, establishes principies and requirements for how the acquirer in a business combination
(i recognizes and measures in its financial stalements the idenlifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any
noncontroliing interest in the acquired business, (i) recognizes and measures the goodwil! acquired in the business
combination or a gan from a bargain purchase, and (i} determines what information to disclose to enable users of the
financial slatements to evaluate the nature and financial effecls of the business comhiration  The standard will change
our accounting freatment for business combinations on a prespeclive bass.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Slandards Board { FASH) issuednterpretation No 48, Accounting for Uncertainty
inincome Taxes - an inferpretation of FASB Statement 109 [FIN 487 FIN 48 clanfies the accounting for uncertaidy in
income laxes recogrized in an enterprise’s financial stalements i accordance with FASB Statement No. 103, Accounting
for Income Taxes FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for recognizing, measuring, presenting and disclosing in
the financial slatements ax positions laken or expected to be taken on a tax retum. If there are changes in net assets as
aresutt of application of FIN48, thege will be accounted for as an adjustment to the opening batance of retained
earnings. Additional disclosures about the amounts of such habilties will be required also. In February 2008, the FASB
delayed ihe effective dale of FIN 48 for certain non-public enterprises to annual financial statements for fiscal years
beginning afler December 15, 2007 The Gompany wili be required to adopt FIN 48 in its 2008 annual financial
statements. Management has nol assezsed the impact of FIN 48 on ils financial positions, results of operafions and cash
flows and has nol delermined if the adoption of FIN 48 will hawe a matenal effect on its financtal statements.

MNote 2. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash in bank accounts which, al imes, may exceed federally insured limils. This polenttally
subjects the Gompany to concentration of credi nsk The Company has nof experienced any loszes in such accounts,

and beleves it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Censelidated Financial Statem ents

Note 2. Concentration of Credit Risk (Continued)

The Gompany grants credt without collaterat to s patients, most of whom are local residents and are insured under third-
parly payer agreements. The mix of nel palient service revenue and net patient accounts receivable from patients and

third-party payers at December 31, 2007 was as follows:

Net Patient
Service Revenue
Commercial 45%
Medicare 43%
Wedicaid 6%
Acute confracls 2%
Patients 1%
100%
Net Patient
Accounts
Receivable
Commerzial 52%
Medcare 28%
Medic aid 13%
Acule Contracts 5%
Patients 2%
100%

Note 3. Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment are as follows:

Equipment $ 13866605
Office equipment and furniture £,951,573
L easehold improvements 30,493,538
50.311,176

Less accumulated depreciation {8,661,231)
v 41649945

Depreciation expense on properly and equipment was $5,128,031.




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem ents -

Note 4. Amortizable Intangibles

Amarlizable intangbte assels were comprised of the following:

Non-competition and other refated agreement costs $ 11,838,433

Deferred financing ¢osts 1,634,066

13,377,505

Less accumulated amortization (3,173,520

Total amortizable intangibles ¥ 10,2038.935
]

Scheduled amorization charges of intangible assets as of December 31, 2007 were as follows:

Deferred
Non-Co mpete Financing
Agreements Cosls Total

2008 X 1379419 3 26241 % 1,664,660
2009 1,137,752 286,241 1,422,993
2010 1,137,762 285241 1,422,333
2011 1,137,752 168573 1,306,325
2012 1,114 862 36,635 1,181,487
Thereafter 3,151,206 5,322 3,200,527

F 905872 b 1146263 § 10203985

Amoriization expense d non-competilion and ather related agresments amounted to 2,101,338 Deferred financing
costs amotized into interest expense amounted fo $265,374 (as discussed in Nole 8]

Note 5, Due from Affiliates

Aa of December 31, 2007, the Compary was owed $10,859,496 from ertities that are owned by members or affiliates of
the Gompany.

Note 6. Equity Investment

The Company has a 42.2% owneship interest in Liberty Veniure Parners, LLC (LYF). This investrent is valued using
the equity method of acceunting, under which the Company's share of net income of the affiliate 1s recognized as income
in the Gompany’s statement of operations and added fo the nvest ment account, and distributions received from the
affliate are treated as areduction in the investment account.




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem ents

Note 6. Equity Investment (Continued)
The followang 15 the summarized finarcial information of LVP as of December 31, 2007

Assets
Current assels
Cash ' ! 1,106,266
Accounts receivable 1,333,449
Medizal and pharmacy supplies 166,281
Prepaid expenses 118,363
2,174,385
Property and e quipment, net 7,397,953
Secunity deposits - 54902
Other assets 7768

PO0230U08
Liabilities and Members' Equity

Liabilties .
AP and accrued expenses b 1,697,006
Current portion of long-term debt 3,144,992
Qther current liabilifies £,183,359
10,925,357
Long-term debt 2,250,060
Minority interest (730,420}
Mermbers' equily (2,209,989}
Total Liabilities and Members' Equity T 10,235,008
S
Operaling revenue $ 3,847 664
Operaling expenses (6,356,130}
Net loss P (2,008,4b60)
Liberty Dialysis, LL C's portion {43 2%) of nef loss ¥ (1,083,657)
Olher change 136,274
Total Liberty Dialysis, LLC's porlion of net loss S 947,383)
.}

The following are the changes inthe investment in an sffiliate during the year ended December 31, 2007, which is
included in other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Beginning balance $ 730,558
MNet loss for the year (947 ,383)
Other change {136,274)

Ending balance Ik {303, U9d)

11
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Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statem ents

Note 6. Equity investment (Continued)
The Company perfcrmed an analysis of the equity mvestment (Liberty Veriure Pariners, LLC [LVF)) as required by

Financial Interpretation (FIN) No. 46R and Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 04-6 and determined that this investment

is appropriately accourted for using the equity method of accounting. It was concluded that LVP is not considered a
variable interest entity under paragraph 5 of FIN46R and it was determined that the Company should not consolidate
unider EITF 045 because the investors have participatory nghts as described in EITF 04-6 Therefore, L\P 1
appropriately accourded for using the equity method.

Note 7. Other Long-Tem Assets

As of December 31, 2007, other longHerm assels consisted of secunty deposits of $681,809 related to leased facillies
(see Note 10).

Note 8. Long-Term Debt

Longterm deb! was comprised of the foflowing at Oecember 31, 2007

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest af 8.21%

requiring monihly payments of principal and interest urdil maturity on March 3, 2012. The

loan is secured by cerlam assets of the subsidiary as defiried in the Loan and Security

Agreement and is guaranieed by ihe affiliated company, certain members of the affilated

company and the Company. ¥ 1,146,178

Working capital loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc bearing interest

at prime pius 1% {8 25% at December 31, 2007), interest is payable monthly and principal is

due on February 15, 2008. The loan is secured by certain assets of the subsidiary as defined

in Ihe Loan and Security Agreement and 1s guaranteed by the affiliated company, ceran

members of the affiiated company and the Compary 200,500

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing inferest al 8 25%

requining monthly payrents of principal and interest until maturity on May 25, 2013 The

Joan 13 secured by certain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Securty

Agreement and i guaranteed by the afflialed company, cerlain members of the affiliated

sompany and the Company. 1,118,000

Subtotal (carried forward) I 2464187

12




Liberty Dialysts, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem ents

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
(Subiotai brought forward) 3 2464 167

i Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc bearing mterest at §.37%
requinng monthly payments of principal and interest untl maturity on October 1, 2014 The
loan is secured by cerlain assets of the subsidiary a5 defined in the Loan and Security
Agreement and is guaranteed by the affilated company, certain members of the affilialed company
and the Company. 3,863 96

Working capital loan payable to The GiT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc bearing inierest
at prime plus 1% (8.25% at December 31, 2007), inferest is payable monthly and pnncipal is
due on May 25, 2013. The loan is secured by cerain assets of the subsidiary as defined in
the Loan and Security Agreement and is guaranteed by the affliated company, certain members
| of the affilialed company and the Company. 300,000

Tertn loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearng interest at £ 30%
requiring monthly payments of principal and mterest until maturity on February 17, 2612, The

loan is secured by cerain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Securty

Agreement and is guaranteed by the affilated company, certain members of the affiliated company

and the Company. 1,533 58

Working capital loan payable to The GIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest

at prime plus 1% {8.25% at December 31, 2007), inferest |5 payable monlhly and principal 5

due on March 9, 2012. The loan is secured by certaun assefs of the subsidiary as defined

in the Loan and Security Agreement and is guaranteed by the affilaled Company, certain

members of the affiiated company and the Go mpany 400,000

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, inc bsanng mterest at 8 19%
requining monihly paymenis of principal and inferest until maturity on Oclober22, 2011 The
loan is secured by cerlain assels of the subsidiary as defined irs the Loan and Securdy
: Agreeinent and is guaranteed by the affilisted company, certain members of the affiliaed
| sompany and the Gompany 958,706

! Working capital loan payable lo The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest
| al prime plus 1% 8.25% at December 31, 2007), interest 15 payatle morthly and principal was
| due on November 18, 2011. The loan is secured by ceriain assets of the subsidiary as
a5 defined in the Loan and Security Agreement ard is guaranieed by the affiliated Company,
zertain members of the afflliated company and the Gompany. 379,141

Subtotal (carried forward) $ 9,899,569

13



Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nete 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued
(Subiotal broughi forward)

Term loan payable to The GIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. beaning interesi at 8 24%
requiring monthly payments of principal and interest until maturty on February 24, 2012 The

loan is secured by cerlain assets of the subsidiary as defined n the Loan and Secunty

Agreement and iz guaranteed by the affiated company, certatn members of the affiltated company
and the Company.

Working capital loan payahle to The CIT Group/Equipment Finarcing, Inc. beanng irderest
al prime pius 1% (8.25% al December 31, 2007), inferest is payable monthly and principal is
due on February 19, 2012, The loan i secured by certain assels of the subsidiary as
defined in the Loan and Secunity Agreement and 15 guaranteed by the affiliated company,
zerfain membera of the affiliated company and the Company.

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Firancing, Inc. bearing interest al 8.40%
requirting monthly payments of prncipal and mierest until maturity on September 23, 2012.

The loan is secured by cerlain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and

Securty Agreement and 1s guaranteed by the affitated company, cerfain members of the affiliated
company and the Company.

Working capital ioan payable o The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc.bearing inferest

al prime plus 1% {8 25% at December 31, 2007), interest s payable monthly and principal
due on December4, 2008 The loan is secured by cerlain assels of the subsidiary as defined
in the Loan and Secunty Agreement andis quaranieed by the affiliaied company, certain
members of the affiliaied company and the Company.

Term loan payabie to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc bearing interest al 8.66%
requiring monthly payments of principal and interest until matunty on May 13, 2012. The loan

is secured by certain assets of the subsidiary as defined i the Loan and Secunty Agreement
and s guaranieed by the affikated company, cerain members of lhe afiiliated company and the

Company.

Worling capital loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing mlerest

at prime plus 1% 8.25% at December 31, 2007), interest is payable monthly and principal is

due on July 7, 2008. The loan 13 secured by cerlain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the

Loan and Security Agreement and s guaranteed by the affiliafed company, cerain members of the
affliated company andthe Company.

Sublotal (carried forward)

14

)

9,889,553

710,491

200,000

958,792

200,000

824,399

200,000

$

12,984 241




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem ents

Note 8. Long-Term Debt {Continued
(Subtotal brought forward)

Term loan payable to The CIT Lending Services Corporation bearing interest LIBOR plus
3.25 % 8.45% at December 31, 2007} requiring quarlerly principal paymerts of $60,125
plus interest unlit meturity on January 17, 2013. The foan is securad by certain assets of the
subsidiary as defined inthe Loan and Security Agreement and is guaranteed by two
subsidiaries. The agreement requires campliance with certain covenarils including

maximum deht to nel worth.

Term loan payable o The CIT Lending Services Gorparation bearing inferest LIBOR plus
2.25% (8.45% at December 34, 2007) requiring quarterty crincipat payments of 33,250 plus
interest until matunty on January 17, 2014. The loan is secured by certam assels of the
subsidiary as defined inthe Loan and Security Agreement and s guaranteed by two
subsidraries. The agresment requires compliance with certain covenants including

maximum debt 1o net worth.

Term loan payable to Clicorp Vendor Finance, Inc. beanng interest at 7 86% requiring
monthly payments of principal and interest untit maturity on December 31, 2011 The loan is
secured by cerlain 23sels of ihe subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Securty Agreement

and is guaranteed by the affiliated company, certain members of the affiliated company and the

Company.

Term loan payable o Clicorp Vendor Finarice, Inc. bearing inferest at 8.238% requinng
monthly payments of pAncipal and interest undil maturity on December 31, 2014 The loan s
secured by certain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Securty Agreement
and 15 guaranteed by the affilaled company, certain members of the affilaled company and the

Company.

Term loan payable to Clicorp Vendor Finance, Inc. beaning interest at 8.27% requinng
monthly payments of principal and interest until maturity on May 31, 2013 The loan i

secured by certain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Secuniy Agreement
and 15 guaranteed by the affilated company, certain members of the aflitlated company and the

Company.

Term loan payable to Clicorp Vendor Finance, Inc bearing interest at 8.20% requiring

monthly payments of principat and inferest until maturdy on October 34, 2011. The !oan is secured
secured by certain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security Agreement

and is guaranteed by the affiliated company, certain members of the affiliated company and the

Company

Sublotal (carried forward]

15

$

12,934,241

93 569,000

3,626,000

737,268

947 541

1,099,723

0,538,920

45,612,713




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem ents

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

(Subtotat brought foreard) $ 45,512,713

Working capital term loan payable to Citicorp Vendor Finance, Inc. bearing interest at 8. 25%,

interest and principal is payable monthly uniil maiurity on January 31, 2008 The loan 1S secured by

sertain assets of the subsidiary as defined inthe Loan and Security Agreement and is quaranieed

by the affiliated company, cerlain members of the 2filiated company and the Company 600,600

Term loan payable to Cilicorp Vendor Finance, Inc. bearing interest at8 23% requiring

monthly payments of principal and interest unlif matunity on January 31, 2042 The lvanis

secured by cerlain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security Agreement

end iz guaranteed by the affiliated company, certain members ofthe aftliated company and the

Company. 451,208

Term loan payable o Dialysis Clinic, Inc bearing intereat al 7.75% requiring annual
paymenis of principal and interest until maturity on December 1, 2012, The foan is secured

by alf assets of the subsidiary and is guaranteed by the Company and members of the
subsidiary, 3,214,286

Term loan payable to Mermill Lynch bearing interest at LIBOR plug 3.5% or Prime plus 2.25%

{8.76% at December 34, 2007} requiring quarterty installments of principal and interest until

maturing on October {7, 2011, The loan is secured by alf assels of a subsidiary and

requires complance with certain covenants including maximum capital expendtures and

maximum dabt to nelworth, fixed charge, and inferest coverags ratios. 23,437,500

Term loan payable lo Marcap Corporation bearing interest & 8.22% requinng monthly

payments of principal and interest until maturity on August 31, 2012 The loan s secured by

all asseis of a subsidiary and is guaranteed by the affiliated company, certain members of the

affiliated company and the Company 606,951

Term loan payable to Marcap Gorporation bearing interest at 8 49% requiring monthly

payments of interest only until July 21, 2008, then monthly payments of principal and interest

until maturity on June 21, 2011 The loan is secured by all assets of 2 subsidiary and is guararized

by the affilialed company, certain members of the afliliated compary and the Compary. 300,000

The Company issued a subordinaled note at 18.00% non-cash irterest with pnnzipal and

interest due at maturity on January 19, 2011 Collateral security includes ceran assets of

the Company, as defined in the Mote Purchase Agreement The loan 1s guaraniced by {he

affiliated companies and the Company. The note requires compliance with cerlain

sovenants inctuding maximum capital expenditures and maximum debl to net worth, fixed

charge, and inlerest coverage ratios. 20,639,336

Subtotal (carried forward) $ 94791094




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

(Subtotal brought forward)

Term loan payable {o Sierling Bank bearing interest at 7 75% requiring monihly payments

of principal and interest until matunty on February 1, 2014. The loan is zecured by all assets
of a subsidiary, and is quaranteed by the affiliated company, cerain members of the affiliated
sompany and the Gompany.

Worling capital loan payable to Sterling Bank beanng interest at 7 75%, requinng monthly
payments of interest only untit November 1, 2007, then monihly payments of principal and
interest until maturity on November 1, 2009 The loan is secured by all assels of a subsidiary,
and i guaranieed by the affiliated company, certan members of the affirated company and the
Company.

Term loan payable to St Francis Healthcare System of Hawaii {a mincrity owner see Note
12) beanng inlerest al 8% requiring quarerly payments of interest in arrears and principal
due at maturity on January 18, 2014. The loan is secured by all 2s3els of a subsidiary.

Termloan payabie to Morth Hawaii Community Hospital {a mnority owner see Note
12) beanng interes! at 7% requiring quarterly payments of interest and principal until
maturity on July 1, 2012, The loan 1s secured by all assels of a subsidiary.

Term loan payable to fvlercer Fasadena LLC (a related parly see Note 12) bearing
interest at 9% requiring quarlerly payments of interest and principat uniil maturity on
November 1, 2014.

Term loan payable to Ashok Sunder Raj, MD. {a refated parly see Nole 12) bearing

interest at 9% requiring quarterly payments of interes! and principal until maturty on
Movember 1, 2014.

Term loan payable fo St Luke's Regional Medical Center bearing interest at 6% requiring
monthly payments of inferest and principal unil maturity on October 31, 2015, The loan is
secured by the leasehold improve ments finance d by the landlord.

Term lnan payable to HRT, LTD bearing inferest at 9% requiring monihly payments of
interes! and principal until maturity on Decemher 31, 2027 The loan is secured by the

leasehold improvemenis financed by the landlord.

Sublotal (carried forward)

94,731,994

2,200,067

076,759

910,000

400,000

500,000

2,900,000

265,000

1,000,000

103,743,828




Likerty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

f{otes to Consolidate d Financial Statem ents

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

(Subtotat brought forward) § 103743829

Obligation under capitat lease, payable in monthly installments of $1,717 through Nay
2009. Collateralized by related leased equip ment. 39217

Term loan payable to Greater Lafayette Health Services, Inc. bearing interesi at 8. 25%
requiring monthly payments of interest only beginning on May 13, 2007 and principal and
interest beginning en May 13, 2008 untl maturity o November 17,2011 The loan is secured

by all assels of a subsidiary. 1,562,948
105,345,994

Less current portion (6,194,183}
$ 97,151,811

Scheduted matunties of longierm debt as of December 31, 2007 were as follows:

2008 3 8,194,183
2009 8,908,451
2010 9457 262
2011 44 239,114
2012 3625324
Thereafter 20,921,660

¥ 100,345,994

Tolal interest expense consists of interest expense, net of interest income, of $10,070 444 and amortzalion of deferred
firrancing costs of $265,374

Note 9. Line of Credit

The Company has a revohving foan bearing interes! at either LIBOR plus 3.5% or prime plus 2.25% (8 76% al December
31, 2007) maturing on October 17, 2011 and calls for monthly interest payments, and principal is dug af maturity.
Collateral security includes cerlain assets of the subsidiary, as defined inthe Loan and Security Agreement,

As of December 31, 2007, total drawn on the line was $4,044,762, and there was $355 238 available under this fine.




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Netes to Consalidated Financial Statem ents

Note10.  Commitments and Contingencies

Healthoare provider revenues may be subject to adjustment as a result of (1) examination by government agencies or
contractors, for which the resofution of any matters raised may take extended perods of time to finalize; (2) differing
interpretations of government reguialions by diferent fiscal intermediariea or requlatory authorties; (3) differing opmnions
regarding a patient's medical diagnos:s or the medical necessity of services provided, (4) retroactive applications or
interpretations of governmental requirements, and (B} potential claims {or refunds from privale payers, including as a
result of government actions.

Frofessional iability insurance coverage is provided on both a clatms-made basis and an cccurrence basis. The claims-
made policy, which s subject to renewal on an arnual basts, covers only cleims made during the term of the policy but
not those occurrences for which claims may be made after expiration of the policy The Company intends to renew its
coverage on aclaims-made bass and has no reason fo beleve that it may be prevented from renewing such coverage.
Addilionally, the Company believes that thers is no significant expesure for claims incurred but not reported.

The membership nterest issued lo the seller of the entity acquired (see Note 11) shall be non-assessable, exempt from
alt capital calls or captai contribution requirements, and shali not be required to gwve any guarantees, pledge collateral or
otherwise become obligated on any indebtedness of the Company.

The Company has medical director agree ments with mdividuals, who are alio related paries. The agresments rangs in
terms from one year o ten years and from $30,000 to §250,000 2 year

The mzjority of the Company's facilties are leased under non-cancefable operzting leases, ranging in terms from three to
twenhyfive years and contain renewal options of five fo ten years at the fair rental value at the time of renewal or at rates
subject to periodic consumer price index increases.

Future mimmum obligations under noncancelable operating leases and medical director agreements are as follows:

2008 3 8,763,853
2009 8,350,991
2010 8,540,259
2011 8,436,094
2012 8,267 841
Thereafler 91,784 691

Y. o




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem ents

Note 11.

During 2007, the Company acquired businesses having 2 clinics for a lotal purchase cost of $15,546,313. The assels
and liabifities for all acquisitions were recorded al their estimated fair merkel vaiues at the dates of acquisitions and are
included in the Gompany's financial statements and operaling results from the designated effective dates of acquistttons

Acquisitions

The inilial purchase cost allocations for acquirad businesses are recorded at fair values based upon the best information
avallable to management and are finalized when dentified pre-acquisition contingencies have bsen resolved and other
information arranged to be obtained has been receved

MNorth Hawaii Pasadena Total

Current assels 3 2209 3 14686432 § 1,508,641
Ficed Assels 516,939 297 477 1,114,416
Other long term assels - 17,517 17,517
Goodwill 1,147 165 11,918,892 13,067,057
Other infangibles assels 100,000 587,000 787,000
Liatulities assumed - {345,318) {948,218

Aggregate purchase cost b 180b,013 ¢ 13740000 § 15540313
Note12.  Related Party Transactions

Ouring 2007, the Company incurced medical director fees of $1,220,000 1o related parties. in addition, the Compariy
eamed $845,000 of management fees and other income from related parties Additionally, the Company eamed $275,000
of interest from related parties.

The Gompary leases facilities from relaled parties on a monih lo month basis Rent expense under these arrange mants,
expenses for equipment reparrs and maintenance and other operating expenses amounted fo $845,000 of which $13,000
was payable al December 31, 2007 and is included in due from affilistes on the halance sheet.

During 2007, the Company entered into note payable agreements with relaled parties. The balance due on the noles as
of Dece mber 31, 2007 was $4,310,000 and i included in long-term debt on the baiance sheet. The Gompany incured
inferest expense of $156,000 to related parties as a part of the noles payable.

Note 13. Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a purchase combination is evalualed for impairment annually Based on the Co mpany’s annual
impairment lest, goodwll was not impaired as of December 31, 2007

Note 14.

One of the Company's subsidiaries has a Retirement Savings Plan (401k) which covers substantially all employees of

~such subsidiary, wherein e mployees may confribute a percentage of their compensation. Eligible employees must have
attained the age of 21 and completed 1,000 hours of serace. Al its discretion, the subsidiary may make 25% or 50%
maiching contribitions, up to the first 8% or 6% of each parlicipating employee’s contribution. The subsidiary elected to
make an additional discrelionary profit sharing contnbution totaling 4% of eligible partxipants’ salaries, subject fo IRS
limits during 2007 The subsidiary’s ¢ ontributions for 2007 were approximately $758, 000

Employee Benefit Plans




Liberty Dialysis, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem ents

Note 15.  Restricted Unit Plan

The Company has a Restncted Unit Plan {the “Flan’) for cerlain key employess under which phiantom equity units may be
granted from fime to fime. Under the terms of the Plan, the employees are enfitied o receive a monetary award only if
there is a change in conirol (as defined) of the Company. The adminisirator determines the lerms of all swards, inciuding
the vesling, which requires only fufure service

The change in controf of the Company i considered a performance condition under SFAS No. 123(R), and because the
Compary has determined this condition as only reasonably possible, no compansation expense has been recorded for
these units. In addtion, because the amount of the ultimate award cannot be determined until a change in control has
occurred, a caloulation of unsamed compensation a3 of December 31, 2007 cannot be performed.

During 2007, four restricted units were granted fo employess which are still outstanding and unvested at December 31,
2007

Note16.  Subsequent Event

On January 1, 2008, the Company purchased an adddtional 31 6% interest in Liberty Venlure Parlners, LLG for

$1,200,000. As of the date of purchase, total assets for the Gompany and its subsidiaries including Liberty Venture
Partners, LLC was $235,757,633 and tolal habilities and members' equily were $163,856,211 and $71,931,382,

respecively

21
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certitied Pubilic Accodntants

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders
Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Mermer Island, Washington

We have audited the accompanying conzolidated balence sheet of Liberly Cxaiysis, Inc and Subsidiaries as of December
31,2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year
then ended. These financial stalements are the resporsibility of the Gompany's management Our responsibility is (o
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audi.

We conducled our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepled in the United Stetes of America.

Those standards require thal we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about wheiher the financiat
statemenis are free of material misstetement  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounis and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes aasessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as welf as evafuating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audi provides a reasonable basis for our apinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present farty, in all material respects, the financial
position of Liberly Dialyss, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008, and the reaults of their operations and their
cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generaly accepted in the United States of
America.

As described in Note 18, the 2008 financial stale menis have been restated to correct an error to the recording of deferred
taxes related to investments in subsidiaries

/a’?c% S by 2

Stamford, Conneclicut

December 7, 2009, except for Note 18
as to which the date 15 tMay 18, 2010

Mc Gladrey & Puflen, LLP is a member trm of RSM kiemational,
en affiliation of separate and inde pendent legal entities.




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet (as restated)
December 31,2008

Asscts
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents {Note 2)
Fafientaccounts receivabie, nel ofallowance for uncollectible accounts of
35,796,052 Note 2)
Medical and pharmacysupplies
Other receivables and prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Property and equipment - nel (Note 3)
Infangibles - net (Nole 4)
Due fFom affiliates - net (Netes 5 and 13)
Other tong-term assets (Note 5)
Goodwill (Notes 12 and 14)
Deferred lax asset (Note 7)

Total assets

Liabilitice and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilifies
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Lines ofcredit (Note 9)
Current poriien of long-term debt (Note 8)
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt (Nole B)
Other long-term liabiitiies
Total liabilities

Coemmitments and Contingencies (Note 11)
Minorityinterest

Shareholders' Equity (Note 10)
Preferred stock {$0.001 par value, 154,962,178 authorized; 154,962 .17R issued)
Additional paid-in capiial - preferred
Common slock (30,001 par value, 400,000,000 zuthorized; 145,037 822 issued
and oulsianding)
Additional paid-in capital - commen
Relained earnings
Total sharcholders' equity

Total liabilities and sharcholders’ equity

See Noles to Consotidated Financial Statements.

28,162,346

42,382 829
3.448518
4,596,142

78,696,905
37 871,400
10,902,071
4,302,161
1,856,360
116,544 355

250,708

3 300,129260

30,339,141
10,044,762
18,855816

59,209,719

125,070,017
13,657,100

202026836

5,198,077

154,962
46,260,654

145,038
43305012
3,039,381

22,8905047

$ 300120960




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Operations (as restated)
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Hevenues
Net patient service revenue {Nete 2) § 19311429
Other revenue 2344 270
Total revenue 190,408 454
Operating Expenses
Salaries, confrasted services and employee benefits 70,384,753
Suppiies and oiher operating expenses 54,0898/9
Prowsionfor unc dllectible accounts 5,H4575
Depreciation and amorlization (Notes 3and 4) 10080634
Othertaxes 2325300
Total operating expenses 1722457141
Income from operations 23213358
OtherIncome (Expernse)
Interest income 394,949
Inferest expense (12813010)
Income before minority interestin net income of subsidiaries 1078929/
Minonty interest in netincome of subsidianes (793,330)
Net income before taxes §983567
[ncome tax expense (Note 7) 3423,718
Net income v bobos44

See Notes to Consolidated Financid Statements.
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Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (as restated)
Year Ended December 31,2008

Cash Flows from Operaling Ac twlies
Netincome

Adjustments to reconcile netincome to netcash provded byoperating actities:

Minortty interest in netinc ome of subsidianes
Distibuions to minorityintere sts
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred financing amortization
Changes in assets and liabilifes:
(Increase) decrease In:
Patient accounts receivable
Medical and pharmacy supplies
Other assels
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other long-term liabiliies
Met cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from fnvesting Achuties
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of various Companies, net ofcash and cash equivalents
Met cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows fom Financing Acliviies
Minontyinlerestcapiial conbibutions
Members' capial contribulions
Praceeds from line ofcredit
Proceeds from long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Net cash provided by financing activities

Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning
Ending

Supplemental Schedule of Non-cash Financing Activifies
Exchange of stock for members' inferestin Liberty Cialysis, LLC

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year for
Interest

See Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements.

6,566,244

799335
(3,563,391)
10,080,634

290,135

(6,361,187)
(1,152 265)
5 623,323

{9.994,101)
12,031,121

14519848

(47,497 196}
(20,137 ,023)

B7534.219)

2037,303
9976430
6,000,000
56,190 628
(19,021 244)

518,117

2.066,746

26,003 599

b 28,162,349

$ 139865666

8,113,270




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of business: Liberty Dialysis, Inc. (the "Company”), a Delaware Corporation, was organized in August 2008 to
form and make contributions of capital to one or mare entities for the purpose of acquinng, constructing, owning, leasing,
operating, mantaining and selling kidney dialysis centers  The term of the Company commenced upon filing the
Certificate of Formation with the slate of Delaware on August 18, 2008 and shall continue perpetually unless terminated in
accordance with the articles of incorporation. On August 18, 2006, the Company directly and mdirectly acquired
members” interest in Liberty Dralysis, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company. At December 31, 2008, the Company
owned 100% of Liberty Dialysss, LLC which gwned and operated 71 kidney dialysis centers across the Uniled Sfates with
its partners through investments in imited habilty companies, which are subsidianes of the Company.

Basis of presentatior These consolidated financial stalemenis and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance
wilh the accounting principles generally accepted in the Uniled Slates of Amenca. The accompanying financial
statements include the accounts of the Gompany and its consolidated subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances
andtransactions have been eliminated Non-<onsolidated equity investments are recorded under the equity or cost
method of accounfing as appropnate

Net-pafient service revenue and patient accounts recenable: Revenues associated with Medicare and Medwcaid
programs are recognized based on &) the paymen! rales that are established by statute or regulation for the portion of the
payment rates paid by the government and b) for the porlion not paid by the pnimary government payor, the estimated
amounts thal will utimately be collectible from olher government programs paying secondary coverage (e.g., Medicaid
secondary coverage), the patient's commercial health plan secondary coverage, or the patient Revenues associaled
with commercial health pians are estimaled based on contractual terms for the patients under healihcare plans with which
the Compary has formal agreements, if any, commercial health plan coverage ferms i knowit, estimated secondary
collections, historical collection experience, historical trends of refunds and payor payment adjustments (retractions), and
requlatory compliance issues.

Patient senices revenue is recognized inthe period senvices are provided Revenue consisls primarily of payments from
Medicare, Medicaid and commenaial health plans for dialysis and ancillary services provided to patients A usual and
customary fee schedule is mainfained for our dialysis treatment and other patient services, however, actual collectible
revenue as recorded in the financial statements is normally at 2 discount lo the fee schedule

Commercial revenue recognition involves substantial estimating riska. With many larger, commercial insurers the
Company has several different contracts and payment arrangements, and these corifracts often include only a subset of
the Company's cenlers. In addiion, for services provided by non-contracted centers, final collection. may require specific
negotiation of a payment amount, which may invalve & discount from the Company's usual and customary rates.

Services covered by Medicare and Medicaid are less subject lo estimating nsk. Both Medicare and Medicaid rales use
prospective payment methods established in advance with definitive terms. Medicare payments for bad debt claims are
subject fo indwidual center profitabilily, as established by cost reporls, and require evidence of collection efforts. As a
result, billing and coltection of Medicare bad debt claims are ofien delayed significantly, and final payment is subject to
audit Medicaid payments, when Medicaid coverage 1s secondary, may also be dfficull to estimate. For many states,
Medicaid payment terms and methods differ from Medicare, and may prevent accurate estimation of indwvidual payment
amounts prior fo billing.

Revenue recegnition uncertamnties inherent in the Campany's operations are addressed in AICPA Statement of Position
(SOP) No. 00-1 Auditing Heaith Care Third-Party Revenue and Related Receivables. As addressed in SOF No. 00-1, net
revenue recognition and allowances for uncollectible bilings require the use of eslimales of the amounts that will actually
be realized considering, among other items, retroaciive adjust ments that may be assoctaled with regulatory reviews,
audits, billing reviews and other malers




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of estimales: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepled accounting principles in
the Uniled States requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect 1he reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assels, liabiliies and contingencies. Although actual resulls in subsequent penods wifl differ from these esfimates, such
estimates are developed based on the best informalion available to management and management’s best judgments at
the time made. All significant assumptions and estimates underlying the repared amounis in the financial statements and
accompanying notes are regularly reviewed and updated Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial state ments
based upon on-going actual experience trends, or subsequent seftfements and realizations depending on the nature and
predictability of the eslimales and contingencies.

The most significant assumplions and eslimates underlying these financial statements and accompanying noles involve
revenue recognition and provisions for uncollectible accounts, impairments and valuation adjustmentls, and purchase
accounting valuations estimates. Specific estimaling risks and confingenciss are further addressed within these notes to
the consolidated financial slatements

Cagh and cash equivalepts: Forthe purpose of the statement of cash flows, the GCompany considers all highly liquid debt
mstruments with a malunly of three months or less to be cash equivalents

Income taxes Federal and state income taxes are compuled =t current enacled tax rales, less tax credits using the assel
and liabiity method. Deferred faxes are adjusted both for items that do not have ax consequences and for the cumulative
effect of any changes in fax rates from those previously used to determine daferred tax assels or hiabilities. Tax provisions
include amounts that are currently payable, changes in deferred tax assels and liabilties that arise because of temporary
differences between the timing of when tems of mcome and expense are recognized for financial reporling and income
tax purposes and any changes in the valuation allowance caused by a change in judgment about the realizability of the
related deferred tax assefs. Deferred tax assels are reduced by a valuation alfowance when, inihe opinion of
management, it 15 more fikely than not that some porion or all of the deferred tax assels will not be realized. Deferred tax
assels and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in fax laws and rates on the date of enactmert.

IMedical and pharmacy supplies: Medical and pharmacy supplies are stated at the lower of cost (firstin, first-out) or
market and consist principally of pharmaceulicals and dialysis refated supplies.

Propery and equipment: Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortzation. The
Company provides for depreciation using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assels estimated as follows:
equipmert, 7 years; office equipment and fumiture, 3 to 7 years, and leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
fesser of the expecled term of the related lease orthe estimated useful lives of the assels. Maintenance and repairs are
charged lo expense as incurred. Uponsale or refirement, the cost of the asset and the related acoumulated depreciation
are removed from the accounts, and the remaining gain or loss is mcluded inthe results of operations.

Amortzable injangibles: Amortizable mtangible assels include non-cempelition and similar agreements, hospital acule
service contracts and deferred financing costs, which have delerminable useful lives. MNon-compehtion and similar
agreements are amortized over the terms of the agreements, typically len years, using the straight-ine method Hospital
acute service contracts are amortized straight-line vver the term of the contract period. Deferred financing costs are
amortized to inlerest expense over the term of the related debt using the effective interest method,

Goodwill Goodwill represents the difference between the purchase cost of acquired businesses and the fair value of the
identifiable fangible and intangible net assets acqured  Goodwill is not amortized, bul is assessed for valuation
Impairment as cicumstances warrant and is performed al least annually. Animpairment charge would be recorded to the
extent the book value of goodwill exceeds ils fair value. The Comparty operates as one reporting unii for goodwill
impairment assessments.




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Fihanciai Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

In accordance with Stalement of Financial Accounting Standards [SFAS") No. 142, goodwill is required to be evaluated
for impairment o an annual basis, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise, using fair-vaiue-based test that
compares the fair value of the assel Lo its carmying value  Fair values are delermined by discounting future cash flows of
the reporting unit, using a nsk-adjusted discount rate, as developed by management

Impairment of long-lived assets Long-lived assets, including properly and equipment and amorlizable intangible assels
are reviewed for possible impairment whenever significant events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment
may have accurred, including changes in business sirateqy and plans, changes in the quality or structure of relationships
with pariners and delenorating operating performance of individual dialysis centers. An impairment is indicaled when the
sum of the expected future undiscounted net cash flows identifiable to an asset or assel group is tess than its carrying
vaiue Impairment losses are determined from aclual or eslimated fair values, which are based on markel values, net
realizable values or projections of discounted net cashi flows, as appropriate. Impairment charges are included in
operafing expenses.

Minority inferest: The consolidated income is decreased by the proporticnate amount of net inco me aceruing fo minonty
interesis  Minorily inferests represent the equity interests of third-party owners in consolidated enlities that are nol wholly
owned As of December 31, 2008, third parlies held mnonty awnership inferests in 66 consolidaled entities.

Fair value of financial instruments: The carrying amounts of financial instruments, including cash, cash eaunalenls,
patient accounts recewable, accounts payable and accrued sxpenses and the line of credit approximates fair value due fo
the short maturity of these instruments. The Company uses quoted market prices for its Yong-ierm debt with financial
mstitulions when available. When quoted market prices are nol avaifable, fair valus s estimated based on current market
interest rates and credil spreads for debt with similar maturities. The fair value of long-term debi approximates fair value
due to the shorl term maturity of these instruments and variable nalure of the applicable inlerest rates.

Recent Accounfing Pronouncements; In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASE') issued
SFAS No_ 141 (revised 2007}, Business Combinations SFAS No 141(R), among ofher things, establishes pnnciples and
require ments for how the acquirer in a business combination (a} recognizes and measures in its financial state ments the
identifiable assels acquired, the fiabilities assumed, and any norconirofing interest in the acauired business, (b)
recognizes and measures ihe goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase, and (¢}
determines what information fo disclose to enable users of the financial state ments to evaluale the naure and financial
effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141(R) iz effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15,
2008, with early adoption prohibited. This standard wifl change the accounting freatment for business co mbinations on a
prospeciive basis.

In December 2007, the FASE issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontroiling interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an
Amendment of ARB No 81. SFAS No. 160 establshes accouniing and reporing standards for noncontroling interesls in
2 subsidiary and for the deconsalidation of a subsidiary Minarily interasts will be recharacterzed as noncontroling
interests and classified as a component of equity. It also establishes a single method of accounting for changes in a
parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary and requires expanded disclosures This statement is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2008, with early adopiion prohibited. The Gompany doss not expect the adoption of
this State ment will have a matenal impact on ifs finarcial pesitiort or results of operations. Upon adoption, minonty
interest will be reporled as a separate companent of stockholders” equity.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

fn July 2006, the FASB ssued Interprelation Mo 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN48) FIN 48
clanfies the accounting for uncerainty in income laxes recegnized in an enterprise's financial state ments in accordance
with Statement No. 109, Accounting for income Taxes FIN 48 prescribes a recogniion thresheld and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax pesition taken or expected to be faken in a tax
relurn. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition of tax benefits, classiication on the balance sheef, inferest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transdion.

In Dece mber 2008, the FASB provided for a deferral of the effective date of FIN 48 for cerlain nonpublic enterprises to
annua| financial statements for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, The Compary has elected this deferral
and accordingly will be required to adopt FIN 48 in iis 2008 annual financial state ments. Prior te adoption of FIN 48, the
Company wilf continue to evaluate its uncertain tax postions and retated income tax conlingencies under Statement No.
5, Accounting for Condingencies SFAS No. b requires the Company 1o accrue for losses il believes are probable and can
be reasonably estimated. Management is currently assessing the impact of FIN 48 on its consolidated financeat position
and results of aperations and has not yet delermined if the adoption of FIN 48 witl have a matenal effect on ifs financial
statements

tn April 2008, the FASH issued Stalf Postion (FSP) No. FAS 142-3, Defermination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets
(FSP FAS 142-3). FSP FAS 142-3 amends the factors thal should be considered in developing renewal or extension
assumpiions usedio determine the useful ife of a recagnized infangible asset under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. 1tis effective for financial statements issued for fiscatyears beginning after December 15, 2008, and
irtenm periods within those fiscal years and should be applied prospecively to niangibie assels acquired after the
effeciive dale. Early adoplion is ot permitted FSP FAS 142-3 also requires expanded disclosure related to the
determination of intangible asset useful lives for intangible assets and should be applied lo all infangible assels
recognized as of, and subsequent {o the effective date. The impact of FSP FAS 142-3 will depend on the size and nature
of acquisitions on or after January 1, 2009

in May 2009, the FASH issued SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events. SFAS No 185 establishes general standards of
accourting for and disclosures of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are
issued or are available 1o be issued. It requires the disclosure of the dale through which an eniity has evaluated
subsequent events and the basis for that date, thal i, whether that date represents the date the financia! statements were
1ssued or were avaifable to be1ssued. This disclosure should alerl all users of financial statements that an enlity has not
evaluated subsequenl events after that date in the set of financial statements being presented. SFAS No. 165 s effective
for interim or annual financial periods ending after June 15, 2809, and is fo be applied prospeclively. Upon adoplion,
additional subsequent event disclosures information wilt be reported.

In June 2009, the FASB 1ssued SFAS No.168, The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hieraichy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. SFAS No. 168 will become the authentative US GAAP recognized by the
FASB to be applied by nongovernment entties. It also modifies the GAAP hieramchy to include only two levels of GAAP,
authoritative and non-authoritative. SFAS No. 168 15 effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual
perods ending after September 15, 2003 The adoption will not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial
position, resulis of operations or cash flows.
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Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 2. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash in bank accounts which, af {imes, may exceed federally insured limits. This potentially
subjects the Company to concentration of credit nsk. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts,

and believes it is net exposed o any significant credit risk oniis cash.

The Company grants credit without collateral to its palients, most of who are local residents and are msured under third-
pary payer agreements. The mix of net patient senvice revenue and net patient accounts receivable from patients and

third-party payers at December 31, 2008 was as foliows:

Comimercigl
Medcare
Medcad
Acute contracts
Patients

Cammercta
Medcare
(Medcad

Acute Confracts
Patents

Note 3. Property and Equipment

A summary of propery and equipment are as follows:

Equpment
Office equipment and furniture
Leasehold improvements

Less accumulated depreciation

Depreciation expense on properly and equipment was $8,713 202

Net Palient
Senice Revenue

46%
43%
4%
4%
1%

W%

Met Palient
Accounts
Receivable

2%
25%
13%
6%
2%

T00%

§ 26452277
12,146,180
67,031,199

105023005
(17,758,206)

5 B7 871400




Liberty Dizlysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes te Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4. Intangibles
Amorlizable infangible assets were compnsed of the following:

Non-competiiion and olher related agreement ¢ osls § 13564583
Deferred financingcosls 2,089 834
15604 467

Less accumulated amorization {4.818,3%;
Net amortizeble intangthles T 36071
indefinite fived intangibles 56,000
Total intangibles T OI0YIZUA

Scheduled amorlization charges from intangible assets as of December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Deferred
Financing Costs  Ofher Infangibles T otal
2009 419436 1,400,733 1,870,164
2010 379,764 1,412067 1,791,851
2011 63117 1,218,/33 1,461,850
2012 161,179 1,213733 1374912
2013 140693 1,204 976 1,345069
Thereafter 13558 29568067 25971620

o 1300y F408004  F TUHELUN

Amortization expense on intangible assets amounted to $1,367,432 Deferred financing costs amortized into inferest
expense amounted fo $290,135 {as discussed in Note §).

Note 5. Due from Affiliates

As of December 31, 2008, the Company was owed $4,308,161 fram enlities that are owned by Liherty Dialysis LLG
members or affiliates of the Company and which bears interest at 3% and has no stated repayment terms.

Note 6, Other Long-Term Assets

As of December31, 2008, other lang-lerm asseis consisted of security deposits of $1,556,360 related to lease facilities
(s=e Nole 11).




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 7. income Taxes

Prior to the formalion of Libedy Dialysts, Inc., a taxable corporation on August 18, 2008, the Company’s taxable income or
loss was allocated fo members i accordance with their respective percentage ownership in the praviously existing
pardnership,

Onthe formation of Liberty Dialysis, Inc , the Company recorded deferred laxes related to the temporary differences
between the amounts of assets and abilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts reported for income {ax
purposes, and recorded the differences in these accounts during the repoding period These include temporary
difterences with respect fo depreciation, bad debts, lease expense, and charitable contnbutions, and the availability of nel
operaling loss camyovers for income tax purposes. The deferred tax asset refated to net op eraling ioss camyforwards is
$4,478,325,

Net deferred tax liabilifies consisted of the foflowing camponents at December 31, 2008

Deferred tax liabilities § (4549654)
Deferred tax assets 4800362
Net deferred tax asset Ey 2ot fUg

Loss carryforwards for federal and state tax purposes of approximately $12,708 585 expire between the years 2022 and
2028.

The components of the current and deferred income tax expenae for the penod ended December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Currenrt Deferred Tota
Federal B - oooad/0 3389790
State 3398 - 33928

) Jodzo y 3BIAT Y 3423770

The difference betweers the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount of income tax expense that resulls
from applying the domestic federa! statulory rate of 35% fo pre-tax income is pnmatily due to current state taxes and the
reporing of the income eamed prior to August 18, 2008 as partnership Income thal i reflected in the Income tax returns
of the various partners.




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Congolidated Financial Statzments

Note 8. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debl was compnsed of the following at December 31, 2008:;

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/tquipment Financing, Inc hearing inferest at 8 21%,

requinng monthly payments of principal and interest until maturty on March 3, 2012, The

loan is secured bycertain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security

Agree ment and is quaranieed bythe affilialed company, cerain members, and the Company $

Working capital loan payable fo The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, inc. bearing interest

at Pnme plus 1% {4.25% at December 31, 2008), nlerest was payable monthiyand principal was
due on March 2, 2008. The balance due on March 2, 2008 was converted io a ferm loan

bearing inferest at 7.22%, requinng monthly paymenis of principal and interest unti!

matunty on March 2,2012. The loan is secured by cerfain assets of the subsidiary as defined

inthe Loan and SecuntyAgreement and is guaranteed by the afiihated company redain members,
and the Company.

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing inferest at 8 25%,
requinng monthly payments of principal and interest untif matunty on July31, 2014 The

loan 1s secured bycertain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Securty
Agreement and 1s guaranteed bythe affiliatad compary cerain members, andthe Company

Term loan payable fo The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest al 8.37 %,
requiring monthly payments of principal and inferest unfit maturty on October 1, 2014, The
toan is secured byc erain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the £ oan and Securiy
Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affiliated company, certain members, and the Company.

Working capitai loan payabie to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, inc. bearing interest
atPrime plus 1% (4.25% et December 31, 2008), inferest 15 payable morthly and principal is
due en July31,2010. The foan is secured by certain assels of the subsidiaryas defined in

the Loan and Secunty Agreement and is quaranteed bythe afiilialed company c ertain me mbers,
and the Company.

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, inc. beanng interest al 8.30%,
requinng monthly payments of principal and interest until matunty on February 11, 2012. The
toan is secured hyc ertain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security
Agreement and is guaranteed by the affiliated c ompany, ¢ erdain members, and the Company

05,519

163,354

981,393

3,563,463

306,600

1,204 429

Subtotal {carried forward) $

7218258
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Motes to Consolidated Financizal Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued}

{Subtotal brought forward) § 7218253

Working capital loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, inc. beaning interest

at Prime plus 1% {4.25% at December 31, 2308), interest was payable monthly and principal was

due on March 9, 2008. The balance due on March @, 2008 was comverted to a term loan

bearing interest a1 7.22%, requinng monthly payments of principal and interest unil

mafurtyon March 8, 2012, The fuen is secured bycerlain assels of the subsidiary as defined

inthe Loan and Security Agraement and is guaranteed bythe affiiated Company, ceram

members, and the Company 326,771

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/=quipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest at 8.19%,

requiring monthly payments of principal and interest unlil matuntyon Oclober 22, 2011. The

loan is secured bycerlain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security

Agree ment and is guaranteed by the affiliated company, cerain members, and the Company 750,711

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc bearing interest af 8.25%,

requiring monthly payments of principal and interest until maturity on November 18, 2014

The loanis secured bycerlain assels of the subsidiaryas defined inthe Loan and Sec urity

Agreement andis guaranteed by the aflliated Company, cerain members, and the Company 297,695

Term foan payable fo The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Irc. bearing intorest at 8.24%,

requiring monthly payments of principal and inferest untit matusityon February 41, 2012, The

foan is secured bycerain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Secunty

Agreemeniand is guaranteed by the affilialed c ompany, cerain members, and the Company, 867,641

Warling capital loan payable fo The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest

at Prime plus 1% {4.25% at December 31, 2008), interest was payable monthly and principa! was

due on February 24, 2008. The balance due on February 24, 2008 was converled to a term

loan bearing interest at 7 22%, requiring monthly payments of pnncipal and intersst until

malurity on February 24, 2012, The loan is secured bycerain assets of the subsidiarny as

defined inthe Loan and Securty Agreement and 1s guaranteed by the affilialed company,

cerlain members, and the Company. ' 163,355

Subtetal {carried forward) P 9324431




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
(Subtotal brought forward)

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest at 840%,
requinng monthlypayments of principal and inferest until matunty on September 23, 2012,
The loan is secured bycertain assels of the subsidiaryas defined in the Loan and Secuniy
Agreement and is guaranteed bythe aflifiated company, ¢ efain members, and the Gompany.

Working capital loan payable o The CIT Group£quipment Financing, Inc. beanng inferest

at Frime pius 1% (4.25% al December31, 2008), interest was payable monthly and prncipal was

due on October 25, 2008. T he balanc e due on Oclober 25, 2008 was comverted to a term foan bearing
interest at 6.64%, requirng monthlypayments of principal and interest untit matunty on December
4,2012 The loan is secured byc ertain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Lean and Security
Agreement and is guaranteed bythe afliiated company, certain members, arid the Company

Term loan payable to The (T Group/Equipment Financing, Inc bearing intetes! at 866%,
requiring monthlypayments of principal and interest until matunty on May 13 2012, The foan
Issecured bycerlain assefs of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and SecuntyAgreement
and s quaranteed by the affilialed company cerain members, and the Company

Working capiiat loan payabie to The CIT GroupAzquipment Financing, Inc. beanng interes!

at Prime plus 1% (4.25% al December 31, 2008), inferest was payable monthly and principal was
due on July 7, 2008 The balance due on July7, 2008 was converted to a lerm

loan bearing inferest at 8.53%, requiring monthiypayments of prinzipal and interest until
malunbyon July 7, 2012. The loan & secured byc ertain assets of the subsidiary as

definedin the Loan and SecuntyAgreement and is guarante ed bythe affitated company,

cerlain members, and the Company

Term loan payable fo The (1T Lending Senices Corporation bearing interest LIBOR plus

3.25 % (2.06% at December31, 2008), requinng quartedy principal payments of $60,125

plus interest unfil maturty on January 17, 2014 The loan 1ssecured bycertain assels of the
subsidiaryas deftned inthe Loan and Sec urity Agree ment and 1 guaranieed by twa subsidianies.

Term loan payabie fo The CIT Lending Senices Corporation bearng interest LIBOR plus

325% (5.06% al December 31, 2008}, requinng quarterly principal payments of $9,260 plus

interestuntil maturity en January 17, 2014. The loan is secured by ertain assels of he

subsidiaryas defined in the Loan and Security Agree ment arid 15 guaranieed by two subsidianes
Subtotal (carried forward)

v 9324431

788,163

200,000

674,743

179,121

23,328,500

3,589,000

$ 38083958
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Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

(Subtotal brough: forward) $  BUHIWH

Term loan payable to Citicorp Vendor Finance, Inc. beanng interestat / 86%, requinng

monthtypayments of pnncipal and interest until matunityon December 31,2011, The loan 5

secured bycertain assels of the subsidiary as defined inthe Loan and SecunbyAgreement

and is guaranteed bythe afiliated company, certain members, and the Company. h7/4 013

Term loan payable o Cificorp Vendor Finance, Inc. beanng interest ai 8.38%, requiring

monthlypayments of pnncipal and interest until maturityon December 21,2011, The loan &5

secured bycertain assels of the substdiaryas defined inthe Loan and Security Agreement

and is guaranteed bylhe aflitiated company, certain members, and the Company {39,449

Term loan payable o Citicorp Vendor Finance, Inc_ heanng interestat 8 2/%, requinng

monthly payments of pnncipal and interest untl matunityon May 31, 2013 The loan s

secured bycertain assels of the subsidiaryas defined inthe Loan and Security Agreement

and is guaranieed bythe afiliated company cerain members, and the Company. 931,864

Term foan payable to Citicorp Vendor Finance, Inc bearing interestat 8.20%, requinng

monthty payments of pincipal and interest until meturity on Getober 31,2011 Theioan is

secured bycertain assels of the subsidiaryas defined inthe Loan and Security Agreerment

and 5 guaranteed byhe afliiated company certain members, and the Company. 1,992 10/

Working capital loan payable lo Citicorp Vendor Finanze, Inc beanng interest at

B.25%, interest is payable monthly. The foan is secured bycertain assets of the subsidiary

as defined in the Loan and Secunty Agreement and s quaranteed bythe affiliated company,

certain members, andthe Company GUO,U00

Term loan payable lo Citcorp Vendor Finance, inc bearing interest at 8 23%, raquinng

monthlypayments of pincipal and interest until matuntyon January31, 2012 The loan s

secured bycertain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Secunty Agreement

and is guaranteed hythe affiliaied company certain members and the Company. 3/f 814

Termioan payable lo Dialysis Clinic, Inc. beanng interest al /5%, requinng annual
payments of principal and interest until matunty or December 1, 2012 The loan s secured
by all éssets of the subsidiary and is guaranteed bythe Companyand members ofthe subsidiary. 2hit 428

Subtotal {carried forward) $ 458363
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Sublotal {brought forward)

Term loan payable fo Marcap Corporalion beanng interest at 822%, requiring monthly
payments of principal and inferest until maturdy on August 31, 2012 The loan 1ssecured by
all assels of a subsidiary.

Term toan payable fo Marcap Corporatior: beanng interest al 8 33%, required monthly
payments of interest onbyuntil Juby21, 2008, then monthly paymenks of principal and interest
untll maturlyon June 21,2011, The loan 1ssecured byall assels of a subsidiary.

Term loan payzble fo Menill Lynch bearing interest at LIBOR plus 3 5% or Prime plus 2.25%
(6.32% at December31, 2008) requinng quareryinstaliments of princpal and interest until
maturty on October 17, 2011. The loan 1s secured byail assets of a subsidiary

The Gompanyissued a subordinaled note al which cumrendiybears nor-c ash inferest at 16 26%
and malures on Oclober 27,2013, Collateral secuntyincludes cerlam aasets of the Company as
defined in the Note Purc hase Agreement. The loan is guarante ed bythe affiliated ¢ ompanies and
the Company.

Term loanpayable fo Sterling Bank bearing interest al 7 76%, requiring monthly payments
of principal and interest until matunty on February 1, 2014, The loan is zecured by all assels
of a substdiary, and is guaranteed hythe affiliated ¢ ompany cerain members, and the Company.

Warking capifal loan peyable lo Slerling Bank bearing inferest at 7. 75%, requiring monthly payments
of interest and principal until maturity on November 1, 2003 T he loan is secured by all assels of a
subsidiary, and is quaranteed bythe affilialed company, cerzin members, and the Company

Term loan payable lo St Francis Healthcare System of Hawan, a minorty owner (see Note
12), bearing interest af 8%, requiring quarerly paymenis of interest in amears and principal
due al maturityon January 16,2014 The lean is secured by all assels of a subsidiary

T erm loan payable o Norh Hawaii Community Hospital, a minonly cwner [see Nole
12), bearing interest at 7%, requiring quarlerly payments of interest and pnncipal until
maturityon January 18, 2014, Theloanis secured byall assets of a subsidiary

Termloan payable fo Mem er Pasadena LLG, a relaled parly {see Nole 12), bearing interesi at
9%, requiring quarery payments of interest and principal unil maturity on Movember 1, 2014
Subtotal {carried forward)

§ 45830633

495,177

255,135

21,875,000

40,399,123

1,906,711

130,429

914,000

720000

420000

§ 112942208
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Subtotal {brought forw ard) $ 112942208

Term loan payable fo Ashok Sunder Raj, M.D. bearing interest at 9%, requinng quartedypayments of
interest and principal until maturity on November 1, 2014 2,500,000

Term loan payable to St Luke's Regionai Medical Center beanng interest af 6%, requinng
monthly payments of interest and principal untit maturityon October 15, 2015 The loan is
Secured byihe leasehold improwe ments financ ed bythe landlord. 237 681

Term loan payable to BRT, LTD bearing mnierest al 9%, requiring monthly payments of
interest and principal until matunty on January 1, 2028. The loan is secured bythe
leasehold improvements financed byihe landlord. 979,835

Obligation under capital lease, payable in monthlyinstall ments of §1,717 through March 2009,
Collateralized byrelated leased equipment. 20,079

Term loan payabie lo Greater Lafaystte Health Servic es, Inc beanng interest at 8 25%,
requinng monthly payments of principal and interest unlil maturityon October 13, 2011
The loan issecured byall assets of a subsidiary. 1,264,813

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Fquipment Financing, Inc beanng interest at 7 37%,

requinng monthly payments of principal and interest untit maluntyon Februaryd, 2014,

The loan is sec ured bycerain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loanand Secunly

Agreement and is guaranieed by the affilizted company certain members, and the Com pany 1,018,585

Working capital loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipmeni Financing, Inc._ bearing interest

atPrime plus 1% (4.25% at December 31, 2008), interest is payable morthhy and principal is

due on Febiuary7, 2010 The loan is secured bycerlain assets of the subsidiaryas definedin

the Loan and Sec urity Agreement and is guaranieed bythe afiliated company cedain members,

and the Company. 400,600

Term foanpayable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. beanng interest at 9 01%,

requiring monthly payments of pncipal and interest until maturity on May 19, 2045

The loan is sec ured bycedam assels of the subzidiary as defined in the Loan and Security

Agreement and is guaranteed by the afiiliated company, cerein me mbers, and the Company 1,476,411

Waorking capital loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. hearing interest

alPnme plus 1% (4.25% at December 31, 2008), interest is payable monthly and principal is

due on May22, 2010. The loan is secured bycertain assels of the subsidiary as defined in

the Loan and Sec urity Agreement and 1s guaranteed bythe affiliated company cerfain members,

and the Company. 100,006

Subtotal (carried forward) F 120839412
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Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consciidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Subtotal {brought forwand)

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. beanng interesi at 8 00%,
requiring monthly payments of principal and inferest unh! maturity on September 15, 2015.
The loan s secured by certain assels of the subsidiaryas defined in the Loan and Sec urity
Agreement and is guaranteed by the affiliated c ompany, certam members, and the Compary

Working capital loan payable o The CIT Group/Cquipment Financing, Inc beanng interest
atFrime plus 2% (5.25% al December 31, 2008), interestis payable monthly and principal is

due on September 16,2010 The loan ts secured by certain assets of the subsidiary as defined in
the Loan and Security Agreement and is guaranieed bythe affiliated com pany, certain me mbers,
and the Company.

Term loan payable to Marcap Corporalion bearing interest at 7 60%, requiring monthly payments
of principal and interest unhl maturityon April 30, 2014 The loan s secured by &l assets of a
subsidiaryand s guaranteed by the affiliated company, cerain members, and the Company

Term loan payable to Marcap Corporation beaning interest at 7 71%, requiring monihly payments
of inferest only uniil July31, 2010, then monthly payments of principal and inferest unlit maturityon
July31, 2013 The loan is secured byall assels of a subsidiaryand 1s quaranteed bythe affliated
company, cerlain members, and the Company

Term loan payable fo Marcap Gorporation beanng interest at 8 03%, requiring monihly payments
of pnicipal and interest until matuntyon Seplember 19,2014 The loan 5 secured byail assets of
asubsidiaryand is guaranieed by the affifiated company, cerlain members, and the Company

Term loan payeble to Marcap Gorporation bearing interest at 8 03%, requiring monthly payments
of principa and interest until maturityon Seplember 19,2013 The loan is secured byall assels of
asubsidiaryand is guaranteed bythe affiliated company, certain members, and the Co mpanmy

Term loan payable to Blackndge, LLC beaning inlerest ai $%, requiring monthly payments of
interest and principal until maturity on March 15, 2017 The foan issecured bythe
leasehald improvements financed by the landlord.

Subtotal (carried ferward)

§ 120939412

1,126,605

200,000

1072678

300,000

1319126

238,732

36,714

§ 125233267




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Subtotal brought forward)

Non-interest bearing term loan payable to Norhside Plaza, LLG, requiring monthly payments
of principal until matunly on Octaber 31, 2016 The loan is secured bylhe leasehold improvements
financed by the landlord.

Non-interest bearing term loan payable fo Microsofl, GP requinng monthly payments of
prncipal uniif matunty on December 19, 2011,

Term loan payable to SDF Imestments, LLG bearing interest at 8 5%, requiring monthlypayments
of interest and principal upon malunty on February 15, 2015

Term loan payable to SDF Investments, LLC bearing interest at 8 5%, requiring monthlypaymens of
interest and principal upon matuntyon Febmiary 15, 2015,

Term loan payable fo Bank of America bearing interes! al LIBOR plus 2% (381% af December31,
2008}, requiring morithly payments of principal and interest until maturity on September 30, 2015,
The loan is secured bycertain assats of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Secunty
Agreementand is guaranteed bythe affiliated company, cerlain members, and the Company

Worlang capial loan payable fo Bank of America bearing inferest at Prime plus 2% (5.25% at
December31,2008), interest is payabie monthlyand principal is due on Seplember30, 2009
The loan is secured by certain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Sec urty
Agreemeni and is quararteed bythe affilialed company, cedain members, and the Co mpany.

Term loan payabie to Bank of America bearing interest at LIBOR plus 2% {3.81% al December 31,
2008), requiring monthly payments of principat and interest until maturty on September 30, 2015,
The loan is secured by certarn assels of the subsidiany as defined in the Loan and Sec uriby
Agreemeni and is guaranieed bythe affilialed company, certain members, and the Co mpany.

iorking capital loan payable to Bank of America bearing interest at Prime plus 2% (5.25% at

December31, 2008), intorest is payable monthlyand pnincipal is due on Seplember30, 2009

The loan is secured by cerain assets of the subsidiany as defined irs the Loan and Sec unty

Agreemert and is guaranteed bythe affilated company, ceran members, and the Company,
Subtotal {carried forward)

$ 125233267

67,008

136,393

100,000

100,000

1,135,794

450,000

1,033,556

450,000

§ 128,706,018




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

hotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Sublotal prought forward)

Term loan payable to Bank of America baaring interegt at LIBOR plus 2% (381% af December 31,

2008}, requinng monthly payments of principaf and interest undil maturdyon September 30, 2015,
The foan is secured bycertain assels ofthe subsidiaryas defined inthe Loan and Securily
Agreement andis guaranteed bythe affiiated compary, certain members, and the Company

Working capital loan payable to Bank of America bearing interest at Pnme plus 2% H.20% at
Dezember 31, 2008), interest s payable monihlyand principal is due on September 30, 2009,
The loan s secured bycertain assets of the subsidiary as defined nthe Loan and Secunty
Agreement and is guaranieed bythe afiiialed company, certain members, and the Company.

Term loan payable to Manulaciurers and Traders Trust Companybearing interest at LIBOR plus
35% p.31% @ December31, 2UU8) requiring monthy payments of principal and interest until
maturity on December 12, 215 The loan is secured byall assets of asubsidiary as defined in
the Loan and Security Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affiliated company, cerlain members,
and the Company

Term foan payable to M Group Consutting, L LC bearing interest at 9%, requiring annual paymenis
of principal and quartery payments of interest until maturty on October 31, 2010,

T erm toan payatile lo Marcap Corporation bearing inferesi at / 8/ %, requirng monthly
payments of principal and interest until matunty on August 31, A4, The loan i secured by
certain assets ofthe subsidiaryas defined inthe Loan and Security Agreement and is guaranteed
bythe affiliated company, certain members, and the Compary.

Term loan payable lo Marcap Corporation bearing interest al / 8/%, requiring rmonthly
payments of interest only until Apn) 3, 2009, then martthly payments of principal and inferest

until maturity on April 30,2012 The loan is secured bycerain assets of asubsidiary as defined in
the Loan and Security Agreement and is quaranteed bythe afflialed company cerain members,
and the Company

Term loan payable o Marcap Corporation bearing interest at / 8/%, requiring monthly
payrmenis of principal and inferest until matuntyon August 31, 013 The foan s secured by
certain assels of a subsidiaryas defined inthe Loan and Secunty Agreement and &8 guaraniead by
the affiliated company, certain members, andthe Company.

Subtotal (carried forward)

21

§ 128706018

LO31,169

450,00

1,740,000

11,000,000

894,251

25,000

451638

$ 14455806




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

iNote 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Sublaal (broughi forward}

Term loan payable o Marcap Gorporalion beanng interest a!7.87 %, regutring monthly
payments of interest onlyuntil Apnl 30, 2008, then monthlypayments of principal and interest

until maturity on April 30, 2012 The loan & secured bycertain assels of a subsidiary as defined in
the L oan and Securiy Agree ment and is guaraniead bythe affiliated company cerfain members,
and the Company.

Term loan payable to Marcap Corporation bearing inferest al 8 10%, requiring monthly
payments of pincipal and interest unkil maturty on July 31, 2013. The loan is secured by

certain assels of a subsidiary as defined i1 the Lozn and Security Agrse ment and is guaranteed by
the affiliated company, cedain members, and the Company.

Term loan payable to Marcap Corporalion beaning interest at 8 10%, requiring monihly
payments of interest onlyuntil July31, 2009, then monthly payments of princ ipal and interest

until maturity on July30, 2012. The loan i3 secured bycedain assels of the subsidiary as defined in
the Loan and Security Agree ment and i3 guarantee d bythe affiliated company, certain members,
and the Company.

Term loan payable to Farmers Bank bearing interest af 8 13%, requiring monthly

payments of principal and interest until matuntyon August 22, 2013 The loan 1s sec ured by

all assets ofthe subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Sec unty Agree ment and is guaranteed by
the affilizted c cmpany certain members, and the Company,

Working capital loan payable to Farmers Bankbeaning interest at Wafl Street Journa! Prime

(3 25% at December 31, 2008), requiring monthly payments interest and principal due af maiunty
on August 22, 2009. The loan is secured bycerlan assels of a subsidiary as defined in the Loan
and Security Agreement and is guaranteed by the affiliated company, cerdain members, and the
Company

Term loan payable to Farmers Bank tearing inlerest al § 13%, requiring monthly
paymenis of pancipal and interest unti maturity on November 15, 2013 The loan s secured by
all assets of a subsidrary

Subtotal (carried forward)

$ 144,558,076

350,000

498,686

300,000

630,118

234914

974039

147545833




Liberty Dialysis, inc. and Subsidiaries

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Subtotal (brought forward) § 147545833

Term loan payable to F amers Bank beanng interest at Wall Street Journal Prime B2h% al
December 31, 0U8), requiring monthly payments of nterest only until November 15, 2004, then
monthly payments of pnncipal and interest until maturity on November 15, 2012, The loan is
secured bycertain assets of the subsidiaryas defined in the Loan and Security Agrezment and is

quaranieed bythe affifiatedcompany cerlan members, and the Company 380,000
147 325833

Less Current Portion (16,850 816)
Tofal Long-T erm Debt § 1B0001/

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2008 were as follows |

2009 § 18855816
2010 18644862
2011 27220982
2012 6,287 b31
2013 45053325
Thereafter 31803217

P 147 420853

Total inlerest expense consisis of interest expense, net of inferest income, of $12 528 875 and total amortization of
deferred financing costs of $2390,135.

Mote 9. Lines of Credit

The Company has a revolving loan beanng interest at LIBOR plus 3.5% (5.06% at December 31, 2008) maturing on
January 17, 2011 and calls for quarterly inlerest paymenis and principal s due at maturity. The fvan is secured by certain
assels of the subsidiary, as defined in the Loan and Security Agreement and is guaranteed by two subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2008, {otal drawn on the fine was $6,000,000 and there was no avalfabiity under this fine.

The Company also has a revolving loan bearing inferest at LIBOR plus 3 5% or prime plus 2.25% 5 32% al December
31, 2008} maturing on QOctober 17, 2011 and calls for manthly inferest paymenls and principal is due at maturiy.
Collaleral securily includes cerfain assets of the subsidiary, as defined in the Loan and Securty Agreement. The loan is
guaranteed by a subsidiary and its affiliated companies

At December 31, 2008, lotal drawn on this line was $4,044 762 and there was $955,233 available under this line




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 10.  Equity

Gommon Stock: The Company is authorized to issue 400,000,000 shares of common slock with a par value of $0.001 per
share. Shares issued and outstanding were 145,037,622 af December 31, 2008

Preferred Stock: The Company is authorized to ssue 154,962,178 shares of Preferred Stock with a par value of $0.001
pershare which are designated as follows:

Stock Class Par Value Authorized Issued

Series A1 Corvertible Parlicipating Preferred Stock $0007 38469776 368,465 276
Series A2 Corvertible Perticipating Preferred Stock $0.0M 24336373 24,336,323
Senes B-1 Convertible Preferred Stock $C.001 23168002 23168002
Senes B-2 Convertible Preferred Sinck $C.001 29398369 29398369
Series B-3 Convertible Preferred Stack $3.001 1,736,731 1,736,/ 31
Series B-4 Convertible Preferred Siock $0.001 13,803,755 13603755
Seres C Convertible Participating Preferred Stock $0.001 24049772 24043772

Totd 49627178 1045967178

The Preferred Stock 1s converible, at the option of the holder, or automateally converted uporrcompletion of a qualified
public offering or upon the vole of the required holders, into such number of fully paid and ron-assessabie shares of
common stock as is delermined by dividing (a) the applicable ariginal capital 3mount for each share by (b) the applicable
conversion price forthe applicable senes of Preferred Stock in effect at the time of conversion plus in the case of Series A
and Senes C Preferred Stock, that number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Glass A Common Slock
determined by dividing the Applicable Griginaf Capital Amount for such share by, as applicable’ the price pershare of the
Class A Common Stock net of underwrting commissions in the case of a public offering, orin a conversion olher than a
public offering, the fair market value of a share of Class A Gommon Stock as mutually agreed by the Board of Directors of
the Corporation and the Required Holders These shares of Preferred Stock do not have beneficial conversion fealures
and dwidends are cumulative cash dividends al the annual rate of 8% of the applicable accrued velue for such share,
prior and in preference fo any declaration of payment of any dividend fo the hoiders of shares of Common Stock,

In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Gompany, the holders of Series A and Series B Preferred Stock
are entitled to payment at an amount per share equal to the applicable original capttal amount, the applicable yield
preference amount plus any accrued and unpaid dividends for such series before payment o holders of Series C
Preferred Stock or common stock After payment to holders of Series A and Series B Preferred Stock, the halders of
Series C Freferred Stock are entited to payment at an amount per share equaf to the applicable original capital amount,
the applicable yield preference amount plus any accrued and unpaid dividends before paymeni to holders of common
stock. Thereafter, any remaining assets shall be distrbuled ratably to the holders of common stock

Note11.  Commitments and Contingencies

Healthcare provider revenues may be subject fo adjustment as a result of (1) examination by government agencies or
contractors, for which the resolution of any matters raised may take extended periods of time to finalize; {2) differing
inferpretations of govemment regulations by different fiscal infermediaries or regulatory authorities, (3) diffenng opinions
regarding a palient’s medical diagnosis or the medical necessity of seraces provided, {4) retroactive applications or
tnierpretations of governmental requirements; and ) potential claims for refunds from private payers, including as a
resutt of government actions,




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 11.  Commitments and Contingencies {Continued)

Professional lability nsurance coverage is provided on both aclaims-made basis and an occurrence basis  The cleims-
made policy, which i subject fo renewal on an arnual basis, covers only claims made during the term of the policy but
not these occurrences for which claims may be made afler expiration of the policy. The Company infends fo renew its
coverage an a claims-made basis and has no reason 1o believe that t may he prevented from renewing such coverage.
Additionally, the Company believes that there s no significant exposure for ¢laims incurred but not reported.

The Liberty Dialysis, LLC membership interest issued to the seller of the entity acquired (see Note 11) shall be non-
assessable, exempt from afl capital calls or capital contrbufion requirements, and shall nat be required fo give any
guarantees, pledge collateral or otherwise become ohligated on any indebtedness of the Company

The Company has medical direclor agreements with individuals, who are also relaled parties  The agreements range in
{erms from three years to ten years and from $30,000 to $250,000 a year, respectively.

The majority of the Gompany's faciities is feased under non-cancelable operating feases, ranging 1n terms from five fo ten
years and conlains renewal options of five fo fen years 2t the fair rental value at the time of renewal or at rates subject to
periodic consumer price index increases.

Future minimum obligations under non-cancelsble operating leases and medical director agreements are as follows:

2009 $ 135910567
2010 14,740319
2011 14639542
207 14,526,494
2013 15,715,346
Thereafter 80,183,760

$ 123090070

Note 12.  Acquisitions

During 2008, the Company acquired businesses and additional interests in existing subsidiaries for a tetal purchase cost
of $9,492,368. The assets and liabilities for al! acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair market values at the
dales of acquisitions and are included in the Company's financial statements and operaling results from the designated
effective daies of acquisitions




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financia) Statements

Note 12.  Acquisitions {Continued)

The initial purchase cost allocations for acquired businesses are recorded af fatr values based upon the best information
avallable o management and are finalized when identified pre-acquistion contingencies have been resolved and ofher
mformation arranged to be obtained has been received

Additional Inferest Liberly Venture

in Subsidianes Parners Liberty New Yarik T ofal

Current assels $ - 2774384 F 2551384 ¥ 5325/68
Fixed sssels - 7,397 953 7,003 7,404 956
Other Jong-term assets - 62671 60626 123297
Goodwill ‘ 3,492 368 - 14620288 18,012,656
Other intangibles assels - - 1,675,000 1,675,000
Liabililies assumed - (10,235 008) (2,469 645) (12,404,654)

Aggregate purchase ¢ ost v 3EZ3E s v 1654IERE T ¥ 20137023

Note 13.  Related Party Transactions

During 2008, the Company incurred medical direclor fees of $1,902,785 to related parties. In addition, the Company
earned 1,671,414 of management fees and other income from related parlies. Addiionally, the Company earmed
$38,756 of interest from related parties

The Company feases facilties from retated parties ori a month fo mordh hass. Rerd expense under these arange ments,
expenses for equipment repairs and maintenance and other operating expenses amounted to §1,085 463

During 2008, the Gompany entered into note payable agreements wilh refated parties. The balance due on the notes as
of December 31, 2008 was $2,050,000 and is included in fong-term debt on the balance sheel The Company incurred
Interest expense of $176 025 1a related parties as a part of the notes payable

Note 14. Goodwill

Goodwill asquired in a purchase combination is evaluated for tmpairment annually. Based on the Go mpamny’s annual
impairment test, goodwill was not impzired for the year ended December 31, 2003

Note 15.  Employee Benefits Plans

One of the Company’s subsidiaries has a Retirement Savings Plan 401k} which covers substaniially afl employees of
such subsidiary, wherein employees may contribule a percentage of their compersation Eligible e mployees must have
attained the age of 21 and completed 1,000 hours of service Al ils discretion, the Subsidiary may make 25% or 50%
matching contibutions, up to the first 8% or 6% of eash paricipating employee’s contribution. The Subzidiary elected to
make an additional discretionary profi sharing coninbulion totaling 4% of eligible paricipant’s salary, subject Lo IRS hmits
during 2008. The Subsidiary's contnbutions for 2008 ware approximalely $610,000

28




Lib erty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 16. Restricted Unit Plan

The Company has a Resinicted Unit Plan {ihe "Plan’) for certain key employees under which phantom equity urils may be
granted from time 1o fime. Under ihe terms of the Plan, the employees are enlitied to recenve a monetary award onty if
there is  chenge in conlrol {as defined) of the Gompany. The administrator determines the terms of all awards, including

the vesting, which requires only fulure service

The change in controt of the Gompany is considered a performance condition under SFAS No. 123(R), and because the
Company has determined this condition as onty reasonably possible, no compensation expense has been recorded for
these units. In addition, because the amount of the ultimate award cannot be defermined until a chanige in control has
occurred, a calculation of unearned compensation &s of December 31, 2008 cannot be performed.

During 2008, fifleen restricied unds were granted to employees which were siill ouistanding and unvesled ai December
31, 2008.

Note 17.  Subsequent Event
The Company ssued 25,510,204 shares of Semes D Converlible Preferred Stock for $25,000,000 in March 2009,

The Company purchased an addiional faciity in March 2009, The purchase price was approximately $4,000,000, which
was paid in cash and notes payable. The fair value of the assels acquired and liabiilies assumed has not been completed
as of the date of these financial state ments

The Company purchased an inierest in an addihional 5 facitities in July 2009, The purchase price was approx mat ely
$1 137,000, which was paid in cash and debl forgiveness. The fair value of the assels acquired and liabilities assumed
has-not been completed as of the date of these financial staiements.

Note18. Restatement

The 2008 consolidated financial statements have been restaled fo correct the beginning balance of the Company's
deferred{axes related Lo irvestments in subsidiaries. The following financial stalement fine items were affected by this

statement:

Debit (Credt)

Ag Previousty Ltitectof
Reporled Ag Restated Resiaement
Balance Sheel
Goodwill 115,895,700 116,544 3% 644,655
Deferred tax asset - 280,704 250,708
fccounts payable end accrued expenses (30,387 475 (30399141 (11,666)
Deferred tax liability (2081432) - 2,081,432
Retained eamings (14,252 {3032,381) (2965,129)

Stalement of iIncome
Prowsion for {benefil from) income taxes 2 103694 3423718 1,320,024
Netincome (7 386,265 [0,560,244) 1320024
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McGladrey & Pullen

Doralied Public Accotniants

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders
Ltberty Dialysis, inc and Subsidianies
Mercer Island, W ashinglon

We have audited the accompanying conselidated balance sheet of Libery Dialysis, inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2009, and the related consolidated stalements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the
yearthen ended. These financial stalements are the responsibility of the Company's management Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statemenls based on cur audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted inthe United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial sialements are free of material misstalement An audt includes examining, on aiest basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures m the financiai stalements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimales made by management, as well as evaluating the overal financial state mert
presentation. We belteve thal our audit prowides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in alt material respecis, the
financial position of Libery Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of Amenica.

//}c’%//’/ﬂ&@/ P

Stemford, Conneclicut
May 20, 2010




Liberty Dialysis, in¢. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31,2009

Assets
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalenis (Nofe 2)

Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncoledible accounks of

$7,481,381 (Nok 2)
Medical and pharmacy supples
Frepaid expenses and other current assets
Total surrent assels

Property and equipment- net (Nate 3)
Due from afiliates - net (Notes5 and 13)
Qther long-term assels (Mote 6)
Inbngibles - nel (Nole 4)

Goodwill (Note 14)

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilties
Accounts payable and acarued expenses
Lines of credit (Nole 9)
Curreniportion of long-term debt (Mote 8)
Total current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilty (Note 7)

Long-term debi (Noke 8)

Other long-ferm liabdifies
Total liabilities

Commitrments and Coningencies (Note 11)

Equity (Note 10)

Preferred siock (30 001 par value, 180,472,382 zuthorized 180,472,322 issued)

Addilional paid-in capital - preferred

Common stock ($0.001 par value, 400,000,000 authorized, 145,037 822 issued

and outslanding)
Addional paid-in capital - common
Retained earnings
N on-cont olling nterest
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

See Notes to Cansdlidated Financial Siatements.

3 46,122,098

49,939,656
6,297,021
6,806 256

108,165,031

105,650,834
8506418
1176658
9,962,885

121,680,583

356,142,419

) 38,737,773
10,044,762
22,095,534

72,478,069

2,772,289
137,532,080
21,130,367

233,912,785

180,472
70,787,007

145,038
43,308,012
8,392,585
{580,480)

122,229,834

$ 356,142,419




Liberty Dialysis, Inc.and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Operations
YearEnded December 31,2009

Revenues
Net patien! servce revenue (Nofe 2)
Other revenue
Total revenues

Operating Expenses
Salarnes, contracted services and employee benefits
Supplies and other operaling expenses
Prousion for uncollectible accounts
Deprecialion and amortization (Notes 3 and 4)
Other taxes
Total operating expenses

Income from operations
Ciherincome {(Expense)
Interestincome
Interesl expense
Other 03383
Netotherexpenses

income before taxes

fncome tax expense (Note 7)
Netincome

Add: Net loss attribufable to the non-controlling inferest

Netincome attributable to Liberty Dialysis, inc.

See Notes o Consolidated Financial Slatements.

T 040445 455
6,852,605

247,298,060

96,662,944
106,729,623
6,275,342
12,482 484
2923 261

225,073,654

22,224,406

627,616
(15,972,877)
663,636

(16,008,897)

6,215,508

3,481,111

D734,397

2,618,806

$ 5,353,203
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Liberty Dialysis,Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement ofCash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Cash Ftows from Operafing Acliwlies
Netincome

Adjusiments to reconcile netincome to net cash provided by operating activhies:

Qtherfosses

Depreciation and amorization

Deferred financing amorization

Deferred rent amorization

Changes in assets and liabilities.

{increase) decrease in
Patientaccounts recenable
Medical and pharmacysupplies
Prepaid expenses and other current assefs
Due from affiliates
Otherlong-lerm assetls

Increase in:
Accounis payable and accrued expenses
Otherleng-term liabilties
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Inwsling Activlies
Purchase of propertyand equipment, net
Purchase of intangible assels
Purchase ofvanous Gompanies, net of cash and cash equivalents
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Az tnities
Non-controlling interest capital c ontributions, net
Non-conlrolling interest distributions
Members'capital contrbutions
Deferred financing c osts
Proceeds from long-term debt
Prncipal payments on long-term debt
Net cash provided by financing activities

Netincreasein cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginnmng
Ending

Supple mental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the yearfor
Inferest

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements.

$ 2734397

663,63
12482 484
500,283
1,996,000

7.018.435)
(2,305 299)
(2749,125)
(4214,818)
641,750

8,557,124
7878177

14,6bb,205

(07,776,554)
(496,470}
(3519.194)

37.792,218)

2646315
5,806,067)
24,551,365
(508,109)
07,657,373
(17,455,612)

31,085,705

17,953,752

28,162,346

$ 46,122,098

¥ 8561337




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes te Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Malure of business: Liberty Dialysss, Inc. (the "Company”), a Delaware Corporation, was organized in August 2008 to
form and make conlrbutions of capitalto one or more enfities for the purpose of acquiring, construcling, owning, leasing,
opereting, maintaining and selling kidney diatysis centers. The term of the Compary commenced upon filing the
Cerlificate of Formation wath the state of Delaware on August 18, 2008 and shall continue perpetually unless terminated in
accordance with the adicles of incorporation. On August 18, 2008, the Comparry directly and indirectly acquired
members’ interest in Liberty Dialyss, LLC, a Delaware Limifed Liability Compary. At December 31, 2008, the Company
owned 100% of Liberty Dialysis, LLC which owned and operated 88 kidney dialysis centers across the United States with
its partners through investments in limifed fiability companies, which are subsidiaries of the Company.

Basis of presentation: These consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance
with the accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America. The accempanying financial
statements include the accounts of Liberly Dialysis, LLG and all of its consolidated subsidianes. All significant
intercompany balances and fransactions have beer eliminated.

Net-palient service revenue and patient accounis receivable: Revenues associated with Medicare and Medicaid
programs are recognized based on a) the payment rates that are established by statute or requlation for the porion of the
payment rates paid by the government and bj for the portron not paid by the prmary government payor, the estimaled
amounts that will uilimately be collectible from other government programs paying secondary coverage {e.g., Medicaid
secondary coverags), the patient’s commercial healih plan secondary coverage, or the pahient. Revenues associaled
with commerctal heallh plans are estimated based on contractual terms for the palients under healthcare plans with which
the Comparry has formal agreements, if any, commercial health plan coverage terms if known, estimated secondary
collections, historical collection experience, histoncalirends of refunds and payor payment adjusiments (retractions), and
regulatory compliance issues.

Fatient services revenue 15 recognized in the penod services are provided Revenue consists primarily of payments from
Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plams for diatysis and anzillary services prowided lo patienis. A usual and
custoemary fee schedule 15 maintained for our dialysis freatment and other patient services; however, actual collectible
revenue as recorded in the financal statements 15 normally at a discount to the fee achedule

Commercial revenue recognilion involves substantial estimating risk. With many larger, commenrcial insurers the
Company has several different confracts and payment arrangement, and these contracts often include only a subset of
the Company’s cenfers. In addtion, for services prowided by non-confracied centers, final collection may require specific
negotiation of a payment amount, which may involve 2 discount from the Company's usual and customary rates.

Services covered by Medicare and Medicaid are less subject to estimaling risk. Both Medicare and Medicaid rates use
prospective paymeni methods established in advance with definitve terms. Medicare payments for bad debi claims are
subject to indivedual center profitahility, as established by cost reporis, and require evidence of collection efforts. As a
result, billing and coflection: of Medicare bad debl clanns are offen delayed signdficanily; and final payment 1s subject to
audt. Medicaid payments, when Tedicaid coverage is secondary, may 2lso be difficult fo eslimale. For many states,
Medicaid payment ferms and methods differ frsm Medicare, and may prevent accurate esiimation of individual paymeni
amounts prior to billing.

Net revenue recognition and allowances for uncollectible billings require the use of eslimates of the amounis that will
aclually be realized considering, amony other dems, retroactve adjustmenis that may be associated with regulatory
reviews, audis, billing reviews and other matters.




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Use of estimates: The preparation of finaricial state menis in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States requires the use of estimates and assumplions thal affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assels, liabililies and conlingencies. Afthough actual resufls in subsequent periods will differ from these estimates, such
estimates are developed based on the besi information available to manage ment and management's hest Judgments af
the time made. All significant assumptions and estimales underlying the reported amounts in the financial statements and
accompanying notes are regulary reviewed and updated. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial state ments
based upon on-going actuat experience trends, or subseguent setllements and realizations depending on the nature and
predictability of the estimates and contingencies.

The mos! significant assumptions and estimates underfying these financial statements and accompanying noles involve
revenue recognition and provisiens for uncollectible accounts, impairments and valuafion adjustments, and purchase
accounting valuations estimates. Specific estimating nsks and contingencies are further addressed witkin these notes to

the consolidated financial statements.

Gash and cash equivatents, Forthe purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Gompany considers all highly liquid debt
instruments with a maturity of three months or iess to be cash equivalents.

Income taxes: Federal and state income laxes are computed al current enacted fax rates, less lax credits using the asset
and liability method. Deferred taxes are adjusled both for items that do nol have tax consequences and for the cumulative
effect of any changes in tax rates from those previously used to determine deferred fax assels or liabilties. Tax provisions
include amounts that are currenlly payable, changes in deferred lax assets and liatililies that arse because of femporary
differences between the fiming of when iters of income and expense are recognized for financial reporling and income
tax purposes and any changes in the valuation allowance caused by a change in judgment abou the realizability of the
related deferred fax assets. Deferrad ax assefs are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of
management, il is more |ikely than nof that some porlion or alf of the deferred tax assets will not be realized Deferred tax
assels and habilities are adjusied for the effects of changes in tax Jaws and rates on the date of enactment.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued new guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income iaxes. The
Company adopted this new guidance forthe year ended December 31, 2009. Management evaluated the Company's fax
poaitions and concluded thal the Company had taken no matenal uncertain {ax positions that require adjustment to the
financial stale ments lo camply with the provisions of this guidance. With few exceplions, the Company s no longer
subject to income tax examinations by the U.S. federal, state or focal tax authorities for years before 2006.

Medica| and pharmacy supplies: Medical and pharmacy supplies are sfated af the lower of cost ffirst-in, first-out) or
rmarkel and consist principalty of pharmaceuticals and dialysis related supplies

Property and equipment, Properly and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amorization. The
Company provides for deprecialior: using the siraight-fine method over the useful lives of the assels estimated as follows:
equipment, 7 years; office equipment and fumiture, 3 to 7 years; and leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
lesser of the expected term of the relaled lease or the estimated useful lives of the assels. Maintenance and repairs are
charged to expense as incurred  Upon sale or refirement, lhe cos! of the assel and the related accumulated depreciation
are removed from the accounts, and the remaiing gain or loss is included in the resulls of aperations.

Amortzable inlangibles; Amoriizable intangible assefs include non-compelition and stmilar agree ments, hospital acute
senvice contracts and deferred financing costs, which have determinable useful ives Non-compelition and similar
agreements are amartzed over the terms of the agreements, typically ten years, using the straight-ine method. Hospilai
acute seivice contracls are amortized straight-line overthe ferm of the contract period Deferred financing costs are
amortized to inferest expense overthe term of the related debt using the effective inferest method.




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Conseolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Goodwill Goodwill represents the difference belween the purchese cost of acquired husinesses and the fair value of the
identihable tangible and intangible net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized, but is assessed for valuation
Impairment as circumslances warrant and is performed at least annually  Animpairment charge would be recorded to the
extent the book value of goodwill exceeds its fair value. The Company operates as one reporing unit for goodwill
impairment assessments

Goodwill is required to be evaluated for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise,
using fair-value-based tes! thal compares the fair value of the asset to its carrying vaiue. Fair values are delermined by
discounting future cash flows of the reporting unt, using a risk-adjusted discount rate, as developed by manage menl,

{mpairment of long-lived agsels L ong-lived assets, inciuding property and equipment and amorlizable infangible assets
are reviewed for possible impairment wherever significant events or changes in crcumstances indicate that impairment
may have occurred, including changes in business strategy and plans, changes in the quality or siructure of relationships
with partners and deteriorating operating performance of individual dialysis cenfers. Animpairment is indicated when the
sum of the expected future undiscounted nef cash flows identifiable fo an assel or assel group is less than its carrying
value. tmpairment losses are determined from actual or estimated fair values, which are based on market values, net
realizable values or projections of discounted nst cash flows, as appropnate Impairment charges are included in

operaiing expenses.

Mon-gontrolling inferest  The consolidated income is decreased by the proporionate amount of nef income accruing to
non-controfiing inferests. Mon-cantrolling interests represent the e quity interests of third-parly owners in consolidated
entities that are not wholly-owned As of December 31, 2009, third-paties held non-controling interests in 78
consolidated entities. See discussion betow on the retrospective application of adopting the presentation and disclosure
require ments relating to non-controlling interests.

Fairvaiye The estimated fair value of the Company's short-term financial instruments, including cash, cash equivadents,
accounts receivable and accounts payable ansing in the ordinary course of business, approximate therr individual camying
amounts due to the relativety short period of ime between their origination and expected realization. The fairvalue of the
lorig-terin debl and line of credit is estimated based on current rates offered to the Company for similar debl of the same
remaining maturiies and addionally, the Company considers s crediworthiness in determining the fair value of these

debt instruments.

Recent accounting pronouncements In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASE') issued the FASB
Accounting Slandards Codificalion and Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Pnnciples {the "FASE Codification”),
which was effective for the Company July 1, 2009. The FASE Codification does not altercurrent U.S GAAP, but rather
infegrates exsling accounting standards with other authontative guidance. Under the F ASB Codification, there is a single
source of authoritalive U.S GAAP for non-governmental entities and this has superseded all ol her previously 1ssued non-
SEC accounting and reporting guidance. The adoption of the FASE Codification did not have any impact on lhe
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASE issued authoritative guidance regarding subsequent events. This authoritative guidance
estabiishes general standards of accounting for and disclosures of events thal occur afler the halance sheet date but
before finarcial stale ments are wsued or are available fo be fssued It requires disclosure of the date through which an
entily has evaluated subsequent events and the basis for that date, thal is, whether that date represenis the date the
financial slale menis were issued or were available to be issued This disclosure should alert ali users of the financial
stafements that an enlity has not evaluated subsequent events afler thal date inthe set of financial statemenls being
presented. This authoritative guidance is effective for financial perods ending after June 15, 2009 The Company
adopled ihis authoritative guidance during the year ended December 31, 2009 See Note 16 forthe Gompary's
assessment.




Liberty Dialysis, inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company is required to treat nor-cantraling nterests as a separate somponent of gquity,
but apar from the Company's equity, and not as a labily or other ilem outside of equity. The Company i also required
foidentify and present censolidated net income altributable fo the Gompany and to non-controlling interests on the face of
the corsolidated statement of incame  Previously, the Company has reported minarity interest (non-co ntrelling interests)
a3 @ reduction to operating income. In addition, changes in the Company's ownership interest while the Compary relaing
a controlling financial inerest should be accounted for a3 equity transactions. The Co mpany was also reguired to expand
disclosures in the financial statements to include a reconcliation of the beginning and ending balarces of the equity
aftributable 1o the Company andthe non-contraliing ewners and a schedule showing the effecis of changes i the
Gempary's ownership interes! in a subsidiary on the equity altrbutable to the Company. This zhange did not have a
material impact on the Gompany's consolidated financial stalements; howsver, it did change the presentation of minonty
inferests (nen-centroling interests) inthe Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Note 2. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintaing its cash in bank accounts which, at limes, may exceed federally insured fimifs. Thiz potentially
subjects the Commpany ta concentration of credit risk The Company has not expenenced any losses in such accounts,
and beleves it is not exposed to any signifizant credil nsk on its cash.

The Company grants credit without collateral to s patients, most of whom are local residents and are insured under third-
party payer agreements. The mix of net patienl service revenue and net patient accounts receivable from palients and
third-parly payers at December 31, 2009 was as lollows:

MNet Fatent
Servce Rewenue
Commenzial H3%
Medicare 39%
Medicaid 3%
Acute contracts ' 4%
FPatenis 1%
+ 100%
Nel Patent
Aocounts
Receivable
Commercial 51%
Medicare 29%
Medicaid 11%
Acute Conlracts 4%
Falienis ' &%

100%




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3. Property and Equipment

Asummary of propery and equipment are as follows

Construc ion in progress
Equipment

Ofice equipment and furnture
Leasehold improwe ments

Less accumulaled depreciation

Deprecialion expense on property and equipment was §$11,03¢ 029

Note 4. Intangibles

Infangible assels were comprised of the foflowing:

Amorlizable Intangibles

$ 12514464
30872829
15082027
75647 206

134,116 506
(28,465 ,692)

$ 105650834

Non-competiion and related agreementcosls $ 14291863
Deferred debiissuance cosls 2671777
Other amortizable intangibles 84033
17,047 673
Less accumulated amoardization {7 619,245)
Total amortizable intangibles 9,428,428
Unamorfized intangibles 534,457
Total intangibles § 9962885
Scheduled amorization charges from intangible assels as of December 31, 2009 were as follows:
Deferred Non-Compete and
Financing Cosis  Cther Infangibles Total

2010 X 379784 % 17256800 § 2105584

2011 2631417 1,339,133 1,602,260

2012 161,179 1334,133 1,495312

2013 140693 1,325,376 1,466,069

2014 | 121563 1,318,742 1,440,311

Thereafler 408 034 310867 1,318,901

1474376 % 7354082 § 9428428

Amortization expense on non-compete and ofher intangibie assets amourdedlo $1,442 455 Deferred financing costs

amortized info interest expense amounted to $500,283 fas discussed m Note 8).

10



Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5. Due from Affiliates

As of December 31, 2009, the Company was owed $8506,418 from enfities fhat are awned by members or affiliates
of the Company and which bears interest al 5% and has no stated repayment terms.

Note 6. Other Long-Term Assets

As of December 31, 2003, other long-lerm assets consisted of secunity deposits of $1,176,653 related fo leased
facilities (see Note 11).

Mote 7. incomea Taxes

MNet deferred tax habiliies consisted of the following componsnts at December 31, 2009

Deferred tax liabilifies § (5261818
Deferred tax assels 2,480 579
Net deferred taxliability : b (2,772269)

Loas camyforwards for federal and state tax purposes of ap proximately 36,381,585 and $1,772,992, respectively,
expire between the years 2022 and 2028,

The components of the current and deferred income tax expense for the period ended December 31, 2008 are as
follows:

Current Deterrad . T otal
Faderal 3 B0 F 3101912 § 0 3437532
State 43 179 43 179

3 379,199 F 3101912 § 3,481,111

The difference between the reported amount of the income fax expense and the amount of inco me fax expense that
resulis from applying the domestic federal statulory rate of 35% of the pre-tax income is due fo state taxes as follows:

Federalinc ome taxrale 35 00%
Stale taxes, nat of federal benelit 4 40%

Effective taxrale 339 40%




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt was comprised of the following at December 31, 2009:

Term loan payeble to The GIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. beanng intsrest al 8 20%
requining monthly payments of principal and interest uniil maiurityon March 3, 2012 The
loan is secured byc ertan assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security
Agreement and s guaranteed bythe affitiated company, c edain members, and the
Compary.

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc bearing interest

al 7.22% requinng monthly payments of prircipal and irferest unlil matunty on Februany 15, 2042,

The loan is secured bycerain assets of the subsidiaryas definedin the Loan and Securily
Agreement and is guaranteed by the affiiated company, ¢ edain members, and the Company.

Term loanpayableto The CIT Group/Fquipment Financing, Inc. beanng interest al 8.25%
requinng monthly payments of principal and interest uniil maturityon June 30, 2014. The
loan = secured hyc ertain assels of the subsidiaty es defined in the Loan and Security
Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affilialed company certain members, and the
Company.

Term loan payable to The GIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest at 8.37%
requinng monthly payments of pnncipat and interest urtil maturity on November 1, 2014 The
loan 1s secured byc erlain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loar and Security
Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affiliated company cerfain members, and the
Company.

Term loan payable fo The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing inferest at 5.41%
requinng monthly payments of principal and interest urtil maturty on July31, 2643 The
loan 15 secured byc ertain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Secunty
Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affiliated company cedain members, and the
GCompany

Term foanpayeble to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest af 8.29%
requinng monthly payments of principal and interest until maturity on February11,2012 The
loan is secured byc ertain assels of the subsidiary as defined m the Loan and Secunty
Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affiliated company certain me mbers, and the
Company.

Subtotal {carried forward)

3 £56,817

145,731

838,776

3,154,970

270476

879,758

$ 5972508




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

(Subtotal breught forward} $ 5922528

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/EquipmeniFinancing, Inc beanng interest at7 22%

requiring monthly payments of principal and interest until maturity on February 15, 2012 The loan is

secured bycertain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Securtty Agree ment and is

guaranleed hythe affiliated Company, cedain members, and the Campany. 231,462

Term loan payable fo The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, (e bearing inferest at & 19%

requiring monthly paymenis of principal end interest until maturty on Oclober22, 2011, The

loan1s secured by cerlain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Secunty

Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affiliated company, c etain members, and the Company. 502518

Termtoan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest at 8 85%

requinng monthlypayments of principal and interest uniil maturilyor October 4, 2011.

The loan is secured bycertain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security

Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affiliated Com pany, cerlein members, and the Gampany. 201,004

Term loan payable fo The CiT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc bearing interest al & 24%
requiring monthly payments of prncipal and interest until matunty on January24, 2012, The
loan is secured by certain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security

Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affilisted company, cetain members, 2nd the
Company 396,560

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. beanng interest ai 7 22%

requiring monthly payments of principal and interest untit malurity on Febrary 15, 2012, The

loan is secured bycerain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security

Agree ment and is quaranteed bythe affilialed company, cettain members, and the Company, 116,732

Subtotal {carried forward) $ 7,370,404

13




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt {Continued)

(Subtotal brought forward) $ 72370404

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc bearing interest at 8. 40%

requinng monthly payments of principal and interest uniil matuntyon September 23, 2012.

The loan 1s secured byc ertain assets of the subsidiary as defined i the Loan and

Security Agreement and is guarantesd bythe affifizled company, c ertain me mbers, and

the Compary. 601,549

Term foan payable to The GIT Group/Equipinent Financing, Inc. bearing interest at 6 4%

requiring monthiypayments of principal and interest untii malurtyon Decemberd, 2012

The loan is secured bycertain aszets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and

Security Agreement and is quaranteed by the affiliated company, c ertain members, and

the Gompany. 164,603

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc beanrg interest at 8.66%

requiring monthly paymenis of principal and inferest untii maluntyon May 13, 2012, The loan

Issecured bycerain assels of the subsidiaryas defined in the Loan and SecurityAgreement

and is guaranteed bythe afiiliated company, certain members, and the Company 43539

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing inferest at 8. 53%

requinng menthly payments of principal and interest unbil matuntyon June 19, 2012 The loan i

secured bycertain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Secunty Agreement and is

guaranieed bythe affiliated company, certain members and the Company. 133,257

Term loan payable fo The CIT Lending Servc ss Comporation bearing inlterest at LIBOR plus

50 % (5.29% al December31, 2009] re quiring quarterly principal paymenis of $60,125

plus interest until maturily on January 17, 2014, The loan is secured bycertain sssets of the

subsidiary a3 defined inthe Loan and Secunly Agree meni and s guaranteed by two

subsidiaries. This agreement is subjectio certain financial covenants 23088000

Term loan payable fo The CIT Lending Senvc es Gomporalion beanng interest at LIBOR plus

5.0% {5.29% at December31, 2009) requinng quaredy principal paymernis of $9,250 plus

interest urtil maturityon January 17, 2014, The loan iz secured by cerain assels of the

sibsidiary as defined in the Loan and Securily Agreement and is guarantead by two

subsidiaries. This agree mentis subject to cerlain financial covenants. 3652000

Subtotal (carried forward) P 35395827




Liberty Oialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
[Sublotal brought forward)

Term loan payable lo Giticorp Vendor Finance, Inc. beanng interest at 7 88% requirng
monthly payments of principal and interest until maturity on December30, 2011 The loan s
secured bycertain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security Agree ment
and is guaranteed by the affilizted company, certain members, and the Cormpary.

Term loan payable to Citicomp VendorFinance, fnc beanng interest at8 38% requiring
monthly payments of principal and inferest untif maturdy on December21, 2011 The loan s
secured bycerain assels of the subsidiaryas defined in the Loan and Securty Agreement
and is guaranieed by the affiiated compariy, ¢ erdain members, and the Gompany

Term loan payable to Citic orp Vendor Finance, Inc. bearing intsrest at 8 27 % requiring
monthly payments of principaf and interest until meturly on May31, 2013. The loan is
secured bycertain assels of the subsidiaryas defined in the L oan end Securiy Agree ment
and Is guaranteed bythe affiliated company, cerlain members, and the Company

Term loan payable to Citic orp Vender Finance, Inc. beanng inlerest al 8 20% raquIrng

monthly payments of principal and interest until maturity on Ocleber28, 2811, The loan is secured

secured byc erlain assets of the subsidiaryas defined in the L oan and Security Agree ment
and s guaranteed bythe affiliated company, cedain members, and the Company.

Term loan payable to Gific orp Vendor Finance, Inc. bearing inferest al 5 64% requiring

monthly payments of principal and interest until maturity on June 15, 2011. The loan is secured

secured byc erain assels of the subsidiaryas defined in the Loan and Security Agree ment
and is guaranteed by the affitiated company, certsin members, and the Company

Term loan payable to Gitic orp Vendor Finance, Inc. bearing inferest al 8 23% requiring
monthly payments of principal and inlerest untii maturity on January 31,2012 The loan is
secured bycertain assels ofthe Subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Secunty Agree ment
and is guaranteed bythe aflilialed c ompany, certain members, and the Gomparny.

Subtotal (carried forward)

$ 35,395,827

397,410

514,325

749571

1,312,706

457,353

265,764




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8, Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Subiotal (brought forward)

Term loan payable to Dialyais Clinic, Inc. bearing interest at 7 75% requiring annual
payments of principal and interest until matunly on December 1, 2012 The lean 13 secured
by all assels of the subsidiary and is guaranteed by the Companyand members of the
subsidiary

Term loan payable fo Tygris bearng inferest al 8 22% requiring monthiy payments of
principat and interest unlil maturtyon August30, 2012 The loan is secured by all assefs of a
subsidiary

Term loan payable to Tygris 5earing inferest at £ 33% requiing monthly payments of
principal and interes! until matuntyon June 22,2011, The loan is secuned byall assets of a
subsidiary

Term loan payable o Mernl! Lynch bearing interest al LIBOR pus 35% or Prime plus 2.25%
(3.79% &l December 31, 2009) requirng quarderly instalimenis of principal and interest until
maturing on October 17, 2011 This agreement s subject lo cerain financial covenanks,

Term loan payable to Sterling Bank bearing interest al 7 75% requiring monihly payments
of principal and inferest unif madurily on February1,2014. The loan is secured byall assets
of asubsidiary, and is guaranteed byihe afiliated company, certain members, and the Co mpany.

Term loan payable to St Francis Healthcare System of Hawaii {a minorily ownersee Nole
11) bearing inferest al 8% requiring quarterty payments of intsrest in arrears and principal
due al maturiy on January 10, 2014, The loan is secured by all assets of a subsidiary

Term toan payable fo North Hawati Gommunity Hospilal (3 mirorityowner see Note
11) bearing inferest at 7% requiring quarterty payments of inferest and principal unfil

malurity on June 30,2012 The loan is secured byall assels of a subsidiary

Subtotal (carried forward)

§ 39,092,956

1,928 5671

374133

159,505

19,375,000

1,589620

910,000

540,000

F 63,969,789




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Subtofal (brought forward}

Term foan payable to Mercer Pasadena LLG (a related pasty see Note 11) bea ring
Interest al 9% requiring quarlerly payments of inferest and principal until maturity on
MNovember 30, 2014.

Term loan payable to Ashok Sunder Raj, M.D bearing inferest at 9% requiring quaderly payments
of interest and principat until matunty on Nove mber 30, 2014

Term loan payable lo St Lukes Regional Medical Genter bearing interest at 6% requiring
monthly payments of interest and principal untit maturity or October31, 2015. The loan i
secured by the leasehold improvements financed by the landiord.

Term loan payable fo HRT, LTO bearing interest af 9% requiring monfhly payments of
interest and principal until matunty on January 1, 2028 The loan is secured by the
leasehold improve ments financ ed bythe landlord.

Term loan payable lo Greater Lafayette Health Senvices, Inc bearing inferest af & 25%
requiring monthly paymenis of principal and interest unfil matunty on November 17, 2011,
The loanis secured by all assefs of a subsidiary

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing nterest at 7 30%
requinng morthly payments of principal and interest until maturity on February 6, 2015

The loanis secured bycertain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and
Secunty Agreement and is guaranteed by the affiliated company, cerlain members, and
the Company.

Working capilal loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, In bearing inferest

al prime plus 1% (4.25% at December31, 2009), inferest is payable monthly and principal is

due on Februany 7, 2010. The loan is secured bycertain assels of the subsidiary as defined in
the Loan and Secunty Agree ment and is guaranteed bythe affiliated company, ¢ ertain members,
me mbers, and the Com pany

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. bearing interest at 9.01%
requiring monthly payments of principal and interest undil maturity on April 20, 2045.

The loanis secured by certain essets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and
Secunity Agreement and is guaranteed bythe afiiliated ¢ ompany, cerfan membes, and
the Company.

Subtotal (carried forward)

$ 63963785

340,000

2,100,000

202,656

868,998

874,554

880,768

400,000

1995306

$ 71,028,097




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consofidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Deht (Continued)
Sublotal (broughtforward)

Working capital foan payable to The CIT Groupiquipment Financing, Inc_ bearing interest

at prime plus 1% {425% at December31, 2009), interestis payable morthly and principal is
due on May22,2010. The foan is secured bycertain assels of the subsidiary as defined in

the Loan and SecunityAgreement and is guaranteed bythe affiliated company, cetain members,
members, and the Company

Term loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Finanging, Inc. bearing inferest al 2 00%
requiring monihly payments of principal and inferest until maturtyon August 16, 2015,

The loan is secured by cerlain assets of the subsidiary as defined in fre Lean and
Securily Agreement and is guararnteed bythe affiliated com pany, cerfain members, and
the Company:

Working capital loan payable to The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. beanng interest

at prime plus 2% (5.25% at December31, 2009}, interestis payable manthiyand principal is

due on September 16, 2010. The foan is secured by c ertain assets of the subsidiary as defined in
thre Loan and SecunlyAgreement and is guaranteed hythe affifiated company cerain members,
members, and the Company.

Term loan payable to Tygris bearing interest a1 7.60% requinng monthly
paymeris of principal and interest until maturity on April 22, 2014. T he loan is secured by
alt assels of a subsidiany

Term loan payable to Tygris bearing intersst 2l 7 71% requinng monthly
payments of interest only unfil July31, 2010, then monthly paym ents of principal and inerest
unbil matunty on August31, 2013, The loan s secured byall assels of & subsidiany

Term loan payable to Tygns bearing interest at 803% requiring monthly
payments of principal and interest until maturityon Seplember 19, 2014, The loan is secured by
al! assets of a subsidiary

Term Ioan payable ta Tygiis bearing inerest al 803% requinng monthly
payments of principai and interest until matuntyon September 19,2013 The loan is secured by

all assets of a subsidiary

_ Subtotal (carried forward)

¥ 71028097

100,000

1,010,844

200,000

903,112

200,000

1,168,409

196 544

$ 74,907,003




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Sublotal (brought forward) § 74907003

Term loan payable o Blackndge, LLC bearing interest al 8% requiring monthly payments of
interest and princepal untif matuntyon March 15, 2017 The loan 15 secured bythe
teasehold improvements financed bythe landlord. 33401

Term loan payabte lo Morthside Plaza, LLC bearing interes! al 0% requiring monthly paymens of
principal until maturity on Octeber31, 2016 The loanis secured bythe
leasehiold improvements financed by the landlord. 53408

Term loan payable lo Microsoft, GP bearing inferest at 0% requinng monthlypayments of
principal until maturity on December 19, 2011. 91,285

Term loan payable to SDF Imesiments, LLC beanng interest a1 8.5% req uinng manthly payments of
interest, and principal upon matunty on February 15, 2015 100,000

Term loan payable to SDF Investments, LLC beanng inlerest at 8 §% requirng monthty payments of
interest, and principal upen malurity on February 15, 2015 100,000

Term loan payable to The Bank of America bearing interest al LIBOR plus 2% @ 23% al December

31, 2008) requiring monthly payments of principal and mierest until matuniyy on September 1, 2015

The loan s secured by certain assels of the subsidiary a3 defined in the Loan and Security

Agreementand is quaranteed by the afflialed company, cerlain members, and the Company. 1,001,136

Term loan payable fo The Bank of America bearing interest al LIBOR plus 2% (2.23% at December

31, 2008) requiring menthty payments of principal and interest untl maturity on Novernber 1, 2012

The loan s secured by certain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Securily

Agreement and is guaranteed by the ofillialed compariy, cerlain members, and the Company 437 864

Term loan payable to The Bank of Amenca bearing interest at LIBOR plus 2% (2.23% at December

2009) requinng monthly payments of principal and interest until maiurily on September, 2015,

The foan s secured by certain assets of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security

Agreement and is guaranteed by the affiliated company, cedain members, and the Company 911,019

Subtotal {carried forward) ¥ 77540116

19




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt {Continued)

Subtotal (brought forward) $ 77640116

Term loan payable to The Bankof America bearing interest at LIBOR plus 2% (2.23% at December

2009) requinng monthly payments of principal and inferest until maturityon Septe mber1, 2015,

The loan is secured bycerlain assets of the subsidiaty as defined in the Loan and Security

Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affiliated company, cerlain members, and the Company, 461,097

Term loan payable fo The Bankof America hearing inferest at LIBOR plus 2% (2 23% at December

2009) requiring monthly payments of principal and inlerest until maturity on November 1, 2012.

The ivan s secured bycertain assels of the subsidiary as defined in the Loan and Security

Agreement and is guaranteed by the affiliated company, ¢ ertain members, and the Company. 437,903

Term loan payable to Manufacturers and Traders Trust Companybeanng interest at LIBOR+35%

(3.73% at December31, 2009) requinng monthlypaymenis of interest only untit Juty 12, 2008,

then monihly payments of pnncipaland interest until maturityon December 12,2015 The foan s

secured by all asseks of a subsidiary. 1,646,660

Term Joan payable to Tygns beanng interest at 7 87% requiring monthly
payments of pnncipal and interest unfil maturity ot Apnl 16,2013 The loan is secured by
all assels of a subsidiary. 712,780

Term loan payable to Tygris bearing interestal ¥ 87% requiring monthly
payments of interest onlyuntil Apnil 16, 2008, then manthly payments of principal and inferest
untif maturity on April 16, 2012. The loan is secured byall assels of a subsidiary 178,473

Term loan payable to Tyaris bearing interast at 7 87% requinng monthly
payments of pnncipal and interest until matuntyar Apnt 16,2013 The loan is secured by
all assets of a subsidiary. 359,976

Term loan payable fo Tygris bearing inferest af 7 87% requirnng monthly
payments of interest onlyunhil April 16, 2009, then monthly paymenis of pnncipal and inlerest
untl matunity on April 16, 2012. The loan is secured byall assefs of a subsidiary 279,180

Subtotal (carried forward) § &2217685




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt {Continued)
Sublotal (brought forward)

Term loan payable to Tygris beanng interest al 8 10% requinng monthly
payments of principal and interest until matuniyon July 31, 2013 The loan s secured by
all assels of a subsidiary

Term loan payable to Tygris bearing interest al 8. 10% requinng monthly
payments of inferest only uniil Juty 31,2008, then monthly payments of principal and inferest
untl maturtyon August 31, 2012 T he loan s secured byall assels of a subsidiary

Term loan payable to Farmers Bank bearing inferest af8.13% requiring monthly
payments of principal and inerest unti! maturityon August 22, 2013, The foan 1s secured by
all assets of 2 subsidiary.

Term loan payable to Farmers Bank bearing inferest at5.0% requimng monthlfy
payments of principal and inferest until malurityon August 22, 2012, ¥ he loan 1s secured by
all assets of a subsidiary.

Term loan payable to Farmers Bank bearing interest at 7 63% requiring monthly
payments of principal and inferest unil maturity on December 15, 2013, The loan 1ssecured by
all assels of a subsidiary

ferm loan payable to Farmers Bank bearing interest at 4.89% requiring monthfy
payments of principat and inferest unti! maturity on December 15,2013, The loan issecured by
all assets of a subsidiany.

Term loan payable to The Bank of America beasing inferest at LIBOR plus 3 75% (3.98% at
December31, 2008) requiring monthty payments of principal and mterest until maturityon
January 31, 2016. The loan is secured by cerfain assels of the subsidrary as defined in the Loan
Agreement and is guaranteed bythe affilizted co mpany, certain members, and the Company

Tem Joan payable fo The Bank of America beanng interest al LIBOR plus 3.75% (3 98% al
December31, 2009) requiring monthly paymentis of principal and inferest unfil maturityon
Jarwary 31,2016 The loan s secured bycerain assels of he subsidiary as defired in the Loan
Agreement and is quaranieed by ihe aflilialed company; certain members, and the Company

Subtotal (carried forward)

P 82217685

411 402

062 551

507 391

210549

808552

370,130

728404

894 402

$ 86,411,165




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Sublofal (brought forward)

Term loan payable fo The Bank of America bearing interest at LIBOR plus 3.75% {398% at
December 31, 2008) requiring monthly payments of principal and interest until mafurityon
January31, 2016. The loan is secured bycertain assets of the subsidiaryas defined in the Loan
Agreement and is gueranteed bythe affilated company; certain members, and the Compary

Tenn loan payeble fo The Bank of America bearing inferest af LIBOR plus 3 75% (3.98% at
December 31, 2009) requiring monthly payments of principal and inferest unlil m atuntyon
January31, 2016. The toan is secured bycertain assels of the subsidiaryas defined in the Loan
Agreement and is quaranteed by the affilialed company, cedain members, and the Company

Term loan payabie fo Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company bearing inferest at LIBOR plus
(3.75% at December31, 2009} requinng monthly payments of inferesi ordy until August 26, 2009,
then monthly payments of principal and interest until maturily on February26, 2014 The loan s
secured byall assels of a subsidiary

Term loan payable to Manufacturess and Traders Trust Company hearing interesi at 6 25%
requirng monthly payments of interest only urtil February 28, 2010, then monthly payments of
principal and interest until maturity on August 31, 2014 The loan is secured by 2l assels of a
subsidiary.

Term loan payable to Mainiand Bank bearing inferest at 8 76% requiring monthlypayments of
principal and interest until maturity on April 23,2014 The loan is secured byall assets
of a subsidiary.

Term loan payable lo Commerce Nationat Bank beaning interest at8 76% requinng monthly
payments of principal and interest until malunty on September 4, 2014. The loan 1s secured by al!
assels of 2 subsidiary.

Term loan payable to Bank of Nevada bearing inferest at 7 5% requiring monthly payments of
principai and interest until maturity on Augusi34, 2014 The loan is secured by all assels of a
subsidiary.

Term foan payable to Hitachi Capital Amenca bearing inferest af 8.6% requiring monihly
payments of principal and interes! untit matunty on August 17, 2015 The loan is secured by all

assels of a subsidiary.

Subtotal (carried forward)

% 86,411,166

896,956

939676

1,427,020

1,261,000

1420352

1022562

1267 766

1,357,850

§ 96,007,337
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Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Subtotal (brought forward)

Term loan payable to Siemens Financral Senices bearing inferestat 9.92% requinng monthly
payments of principal and interest until matunty on May31, 2016 The loan is secured by all
assels of a subsidiary

Term loan payable to Siemens Financial Sendces hearing inierest al 7.08% requiring monthly
payments of principal and interest until matunty on August 28, 2014. The foan is secured by all
assels of a subsidiary.

Term loan payable to Siemens Financial Servic es bearing inferest at8 72% requiring monthly
payments of principal and interest untif maturity on November 24, 2014, The foan is secured by all
assels of a subsidiary

Term loan payatle lo Siemens Financial Servces bearing interest at 8.75% requinng monthly
payments of prncipal and interest unfif matunty on December 14, 2015 The loan is secured byall
assels of a subsidiary

FPromissory note payable o Optimal Construction { a related parly, see Note 11) beasing an interest
rate at 10% requring interest onlypayments untl maturity on March 1, 2013,

Term loan payable fo KeyEquipment Finance bearing interest at § 6% requiring monihly
payments of prncipal and interest until matunty on November 25,2016 The loan 1s secured by all

zssels of a subsidiary

Term loan payable to Key Equipmeni Finance bearing mterest at 8 6% requinng monihiy
paymenis of principal and interest until matunty on Nove mber 25, 2015. The foan is secured by all
assels of a subsidiary.

Term loan payable fo M Group Consulling, LLG bearing interesi at 9% requiring annual payments
of principal and quarterly paymens of interest until maturity on October 31, 2015

The Gompanyissued a subordinated note beering noncash interest at 16 5% and maturing
on January 14,2013, Collateral security includes certain assels of the Company, as

defined in the Nole Purchase Agresment The loan is quaranteed by the affliated companies
and the Company

Less current portion:

¥ 96,007,337

1,424,393

1,403,780

1303,647

767 445

2.100,000

1,554,413

1,171,704

7,000,000

47,438,875

160007 504
(22,695,534)

$ 137 532,060




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt {Continued)

Scheduled matunties of long-term debt as of December 31, 2009 were as follows.

2010 § 22695534
2011 306899,085
202 10797223
2013 58226260
2014 34,059,551
Thereafter 3547 941

§ 160227594

Total interest expense consists of interes! expense of $15,472,594 and total s morzation of deferred financing costs of
$500,283

Note 9. Lines of Credit

A revolving loan beanng inferest at LIBOR plus 5.0% (5 29% at December 31, 2009} maturing on January 17, 2014 and
calls for quarterly interest paymenis and principal is due at maturity. The loan is secured by cerlain assels of a suhsidiary
a3 defined n the Loan and Securly Agreement and is guaranteed by bwo subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2008, total drawn on the line was $5 000,000 and there was no availab ity ander this fine.

A revolving loan bearing interest at either L IBOR plus 35% or Prime plus 2 25% {3.76% af December 31, 2009) maluring
on Qctober 17, 2011 and calls for monthly interest payments and prncipal is due af maturty The loan s secured by all
assels of a subsidiary, a5 defined inthe Loan and Secunty Agreement and requires co mpliance with cerain financial
covenants.

At December 31, 2009, total drawn on the Iine wes $4,044,762 and there was $955 238 availabie under this line.

Note 10.  Equity

Common Stock: The Company is authorized to ssue 400,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of 30001 per
share. Shares issued and outstanding were 145, 037 822 at December31, 2009

Preferred Stack: The Company is authorized fo ssue 180,472,382 shares of Preferred Stock with a parvalue of $0.001
pershare which are designated as follows:

Stock Class Par Value Authorized lssued
Series A-1 Convertible Paricipaling Preferred Stock 0001 33,463,226 38,468,226
Sertes A-2 Converlible Participating Preferred Stock F0.001 24336323 24,336,323
Senes B-1 Convertible Preferred Stock 0001 23,163,002 23,168,002
Series B-2 Converible Preferred Stock $0.001 29,398,369 29,398,369
Series B-3 Converible Preferred Slock $0.001 1,736,731 1,736,731
Series B4 Corvedible Preferred Stock F0 001 13,803 765 13,803,755
Series C Convertible Participaiing Preferred Stock $0.001 24,049,772 24,048,772
Series D Convertible Participating Preferred Stock $0.001 25,510,204 25,510,204

Total 180,472,382 180,472,382




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 10.  Equity {Continued)

The Preferred Stock is convertible, af the option of the holder, or automatically corverled upon completion of a qualfied
public offering or upon the vole of the required helders, into such number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of
common stock 55 is defermined by dviding (a) the applicable onginal capital amount for each share by (b} the applicable
conversion price for the applicable series of Preferred Stock in effect al the time of conversion plus in the case of Series A
and Series G Preferred Stack, that number of fully paid and non-2ssessable shares of Class A Common Slock
determined by dividing the Applicable Original Capital Amount far such share by, as applicable the price per share of the
Class A Common Stock net of underwriting co mmissions in the case of a public offering, or in a conversion other than a
public offering, the fair market value of 2 share of Class A Common Stock as mutually agreed by the Board of Direclors of
the Gorporation and the Required Holders  These shares of Preferred Slock do not have beneficial conversion features
and dividends are cumulative cash dividends at the annual rate of 8% of the applicable accrued value for such share,
prior and in preference to any declaration of payment of any didend to the holders of shares of Cammon Stock.

Inthe event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Gompany, the holders of Series A and Series B Preferred Siock
are entitled lo payment at an amount per share equal to the applicable onginal capital amount, the applicable yieid
preference amount plus any accrued and unpaid dividends for such series befors payment to holders of Series G and D
Preferred Stock orcommon stock. After payment to holders of Series A and Series B Preferred Stock, the holders of
Series C and D Preferred Stock are entitled fo payment at an amount per share equal to the applcabfe onginal capital
araourd, the applicable yield preference amount plus any accrued and unpaid dividends before paymeri to holders of
common stock. Thereafter, any remaining assets shall be disinbuled ratably {o the holders of common stock

Note 11.  Commitments and Contingencies

Healthcare provider revenues may be subject to adustment as 2 resull of (1} examination by government agencies or
contractors, for which the resolution of any matters raised may take exlended penads of trme {o finalize, (2) differing
interpretalions of government regulations by different fiscal infermedianes or regulatory authonties; 3) differing opinions
regarding a palient’s medical diagnosis or the medical recessity of services provided, {d) retroactive applications or
interpretations of governmental requirements, and () potential cleims for refunds from private payers, Including as a
result of government actions.

Professional and general lisbily insurance coverage 15 provided on both a claims-made basis and an occurrence basis,
The claims-made policy, which s subject o renewat on an annual basis, covers only claims made during the term of the
policy but not those occurrences for which claims may be made after expiration of the policy. The Company infends to
renew its coverage on a claims-made basis and has no reason to believe that it may be prevented from renewing such
coverage. Additionally, the Gompany believes that there iz no significant exposure for claims incurred but not reporled.

The membership inferest issued to the sellet of an enfity acquired (see Note 12} shall be non-assessable, exempt from all
capital calls or capital contribution require ments, and shall not be required o give any guarantees, pledge collateral or
ofherwise become obligated on any indebfedness of the Company

The Company has medial director agreements with individuals, who are also releted parlies. The agreemenis range in
terms from three years to ten years and from $20,000 to $250,000 a year, respeclively.

The majorily of the Company’s facilities are leased under non-cancellable operaling leases, ranging in ferms from five to
ten years and contain renewal oplions of five to ten years at the fair rental value af the time of renewal or at rales subject
to pericdic consumer price index increases.




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 11.  Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Future mirimum obligations under non-cancellable operating leases and medical director agree men's are es follows:

2010 $ 17997558
20t 17,169,966
2012 16,715,278
M3 16606929
2014 16219543
Thereafler 69499564

§ 164208638

Note 12.  Acquisitions

During 2008, the Company acquired businesses for a fotal purchase cost of $4,965,845. The assels and liabilities for all
acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair market values af the dates of acquisitions and are included in the
Company's financial statements and operzting results from the designated effective dates of acquisitions.

The initial ptrchase cost allocations for acquired businesses are recorded at fair values based upon the best information
avallable to management and are finalzed when identified pre-acquisition confingarcies have been resobed and cther
information arranged to be obtained has been received

Mid-Amenca
Dialysis LLC Liberty INS Totsl
Curren! assels § 32003k § 4885719 § 808614
Property and ecuipment 781 041 2080843 10418084
Otherlongierm assets 2579102 11,370 2590522
Goodwil 3301634 878639 4,180,273
Non-controlling irferest (402,711 (180) (402,851)
Liahilities assumed (2579151} (673,730) (3252887
Aggregale purchase cost § 4000000 § adohdh § 49655545

Note 13.  Related Party Transactions

During 2008, the Company incurred medical director fees of $3,108,970 to related parties. In addition, the Company
earmed interest income of $394,278 and $1,004,028 of management faes and other income from related paries.

The Company feases facilfies from related parties on a month-io-month basis. Rent expense under these arrangements,
expenses for equipment repairs and maintenance and other operating expenses amounted to $2,526,399.

During 2008, the Company entered info note payable agreements with relaled parties. The balance due onthe noles as
of December 31, 2008 was $3,890,000, and is inciuded in lungterm debl onthe balance sheet. The Company incurred
mnierest expense of $305,854 lo refated parties as a part of the notes payatile.




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Note 14. Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a purchase combinalion is evaluated for mpairment annually. Based anthe Company’s ennual
tmpairment {est, goodwili was not impaired as of December 31, 2009.

Note 15.  Employee Benefit Plans

One of the Company’s subsidiaries has a Relirement Savings Plan (401k) which covers substantialty all employees of
such subsidiary, wherein employess may contribuie a percentage of their compensation. Eligible e mpioyees must have
altained the age of 21 and compleled 1,000 hours of service At its discretion, the Subsidiary may make up to 256% or
90% matching contnbutions, up 1o the first 8% or 6% of each partcipating e mployes’s contribution. The Subsidiary
elected to make an addtional discretionary profil sharing contribution totaling 4% of eligible participant's salary, subject to
IRS limits during 2009, The Subsidiary’s confribulions for 2008 were approxi matety $665,000.

Note 16. Fair Value Estimates

Effective January 1, 2008, the FASE established a framework for measuring assels and liabilities al fair value and also
required additional disclosures about fair value measurements. These requirements applied to assets and liabilities that
are carmed af fair value on a recurring basis. Effective January 1, 2003, the FASE issued additional reguirements relating
to nonfinancial assels and liabilities that are not recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial stalements on a
recurring basis at least annually  The adoption of these requirements relating to nonfinancial assets and liabililies did not
have a malerialimpact on the Company’s financial slatements

Other financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalerts, accounts recenvable, notes receivable,
accounts payable, accrued compensation and benefits, other accrued liabilities and debi. The batances of the non-debl
financial instruments are presented in the consolideted financial statements at December 31, 2003 af iheir approximale
fair values due o the short-term nature of their settlements. Borrowings under fong-term debt agreements fotaled
$160,227,216 as of December 31, 2009, and the farr value was $163,853,794 based upon the net present value using
current discount rates.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company does not have any ofher finarcral assels that would require additional disclosure.

Note17. Restricted Stock Units

The Company has a Resincted Unit Plan {the “Plan”} for cerlain key employees under which phantom equity units may be
granfed from fime to time. Under the lerms of the Plan, the employees are entitied to recenve a monetary award only if
there is a change in confrol {as defiried) of the Company The administrator delermines the ferms of alj awards, inciuding
the vesting, which requires only future service. The change m conlrol of the Company is considered & performance
condition. No compensation expense has been recorded for these units.

Twenty-one restricted units have been granied fo employees, which were stil outstanding and unvested at December 31,
2008,




Liberty Dialysis, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Note 18.  Subsequent Events

The Gompany purchased addiional interests in existing facililies for approximately §4,900,000 in February and March
2010, These purchases did nol resull in & change of confrol at these facilities.

In April 2010, the Company decided to terminate the Resincted Unit Plan. Feliowing the lermination of the Plan, the
Company paid former plan paricipants additional compensation. The Company raised additional equity capital to fund
this compensation experse.

In April 2010, the Company sold certain assels of a subsidiary for approximately $1,900,000 which was paid as a
reduclion in long-term debt.

In April 2010, there was a shareholder level fransaction whereby new equily investors purchesed shares from the existing
investors. In addition, the Gompany incurred additonal net debt of approximately $124,000,000

in May 2010, the Company purchased an interest in 2 additional facifities for approximatety 31,800,000

The Company has evaluated events through May 20, 2010, the date the financial statements were available 1o be 1s5ued.




Liberty Dialysis Holdings, Inc.
Projected 2011 Balance Sheet

| ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 95,794,367
Patient receivables, net 164,212,044
Inventoties 19,241,565
Ptepaids and other current assets 33,555,444
Total current assets 312,803,419
Net property and equipment 211,982,354
Goodwill 1,171,175,788
Other intangible assets, net 30,347,844
Total other assets 1,413,505,986
Tortal assets 1,726,309,405

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

g CURRENT LIABILITIES:
| Accounts payable 55,648,277
Other accrued expenses 60,969,123
Current maturitics of long-term debt 16,000,000
Total current liabilities 132,617,400
J.ong-term debr, less current matutitdes 760,203,967
Other non-custent liabilities 81,921,185
Total long-term liabilities 842,125,152
Total liabilities 974,742,552
EQUITY:
Shareholders' equity 731,209,922
Noncontrolling interests 20,356,931

Total liabilities and equity 1,726,309,405
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